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31 May 2016

Compliance:
Front: Mr.B.Bodigelo, Mr.S.Shebe 
Back: Mr.M.Jacobs, Mr.I.Tongwane, Mr.S.Mohapi, Mr.L.Selomi
Absent: Ms.N.Smith

Finance: 
Ms.K.Reed, Ms.M.Makoloi, Ms.M.Steenkamp, Ms.M.Frieslaar

Licensing: 
Mr.K.Sekamoeng, Ms.T.Sitsili, Mr.M.Jacobs, Mr.G.Motlhabane

Human Resources: 
Mr.C.Hendricks, Ms. E. Nkompela,  Ms.S. Sehloho

Office of the CEO: 
Mr. A. Present, Ms. N. Francis

Legal: 
Ms. L. Seametso
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General Information

ParT a:



1. PUbLIC ENTITY’s GENEraL INFormaTIoN 

REGISTERED NAME:      NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
REGISTRATION NUMBER (if applicable): NOT APPLICABLE
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:     31 McDOUGAL STREET, MON HEIGHTS
                                          KIMBERLEY
                                         8300
POSTAL ADDRESS:   31 McDOUGAL STREET, MON HEIGHTS
                                  KIMBERLEY
                                  8300
TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:   081 761 9101
FAX NUMBER:  053 831 1483
EMAIL ADDRESS:   enquiries@ncgb.co.za
WEBSITE ADDRESS:  www.ncgb.co.za
EXTERNAL AUDITORS:  AUDITOR GENERAL
BANKERS: FIRST NATIONAL BANK
BOARD SECRETARIAT: L SEAMETSO

2. LIsT oF abbrEVIaTIoNs/aCroNYms
 

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

MEC Member of Executive Council

BBBEE Broad Based Black  Economic Empowerment

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

TR   Treasury Regulations

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

SCM Supply Chain Management
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3. CHaIrPErsoN’s ForEWorD

INTRODUCTION

It is a great honour and privilege to present the Northern Cape Gambling Board’s Annual Report for the financial year that ended 31 
March 2016.

Despite some challenges faced in its first year in office, the Board managed to lead the entity well.

We were assisted by Treasury and the Department of Economic Development and Tourism to overcome our capacity constraints. 
We managed to appoint a number of Compliance Inspectors, a Procurement Officer, a Licencing Officer and a Chief Executive Officer. 

The Board was appointed effectively from 1 April 2015 for a three year period. The Board achieved the following in its first year:
•	 Issuing	of	Limited	Pay-out	Machines,	Site	Operator	Licences.
•	 Unqualified	audit	with	no	findings	on	compliance	and	performance	information.
•	 Successful	Strategic	Plan
•	 A	united	Board	with	one	vision,	to	regulate	gambling	effectively	in	the	Province.
•	 The	Board	continued	to	engage	the	South	African	Police	Services	(SAPS)	to	eradicate	illegal	gambling	in	the	Province.

The Board will continuously regulate gambling to the best of its ability in the Province.

I wish to thank the staff of the Board for their dedication and hard work.

I further wish to thank my fellow Board members for their unwavering support and commitment by always availing themselves to 
attend to Board matters.

Lastly I would like to thank the Department of Economic Development and Tourism under the leadership of MEC Mac Jack for their 
support.

Thank you

_____________

ADV T MOKGOABONE 
CHAIRPERSON: NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
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4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE oFFICEr’s oVErVIEW

INTRODUCTION

Even though the 2015/2016 financial year was a difficult year, the NCGB managed to achieve its deliverables. The NCGB received a 
financially	unqualified	report	from	Auditor-General	with	no	material	findings	on	compliance	and	performance	information.

It is and honour and privilege to present the NCGBs Annual Report for the financial year ending 31 March 2016.

OVERVIEW

Key highlights of achievements for the year under review.

•	 The	NCGB	received	an	unqualified	and	clean	audit	report	for	the	year	under	review	from	the	Auditor-General,	which	in	essence	
symbolises good governance and adherence to sound financial discipline.

•	 After	overcoming	a	number	of	challenges,	the	NCGB	began	with	the	roll-out	process	of	Limited	Pay-out	Machines	(LPM’s)	in	the	
Province and the NCGB is also the last Province to do so. 

•	 The	opening	of	a	second	Bookmaker	shop	in	Kuruman.

The NCGB continued to ensure that all licensees comply with all legislation governing gambling in the Province. The NCGB conducted 
quarterly compliance inspections at licensed outlets.

The NCGBs fight against illegal gambling continued and we remain adamant that same will be the case. The NCGB is continuously 
engaging	the	South	African	Police	Service	(SAPS)	by	strengthening	relations	in	the	combating	of	illegal	gambling.

Supply Chain Management controls and systems were further strengthened during the year under review in order to 
comply with the provisions of the Constitution and other legislation.

The NCGB still has a number of court cases pending against it with some dragging on for some time now and 
hopefully will be finalised soon. The gambling industry is a very litigious industry and litigation against the NCGB is 
almost inevitable. However, the NCGB will continue to regulate to the best of its ability.

The protection of punters and the public at large remains a key priority of the NCGB and we deal with all complaints 
upon receipt thereof.

The	NCGB	has	collected	maximum	revenue	in	the	amount	of	R21	100	470-22	from	licenced	outlets	in	the	Province	
and will continue to ensure that all licensees pay levies due to the Province. In as much as collecting levies remain 
a critical function of the NCGB, creating awareness about the dangers of irresponsible and illegal gambling in the 
Province is also high on the agenda of the Board. The NCGB will expedite the processing of LPM’s as well as 
Bookmaker applications.

The NCGB is looking forward to continued funding from Treasury through the Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism in order to fulfil its mandate and effectively so.
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CONCLUSION

I would like to thank all stakeholders for contributing and support towards our achievements.

I wish to express my appreciation to the Board for their unwavering support, strategic leadership and guidance throughout.

I would like to thank all of my colleagues at the NCGB for their hard work, support, dedication and commitment throughout the year 
under review.

Lastly, I would like to thank the Department of Economic Development and Tourism under the leadership of Honourable MEC Mac 
Jack for their continued support and oversight role played.

Thank you

___________________

ANDILE PRESENT 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
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5. sTaTEmENT oF rEsPoNsIbILITY aND 
CoNFIrmaTIoN oF aCCUraCY For THE  
aNNUaL rEPorT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial statements audited by the Auditor 
General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

The	Annual	Financial	Statements	(Part	E)	have	been	prepared	in	accordance	with	the	GRAP	standards	applicable	to	the	public	entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this 
information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control has been designed to provide 
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the 
annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the 
financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 

Chief Executive Officer 
WA Present 
31 August 2016

___________________ 

Chairperson of the Board 
Adv TT Mokgoabone 
31 August 2016
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6. sTraTEGIC oVErVIEW

6.1 Vision

 “To ensure the integrity of gambling through efficient regulation within the Northern Cape Province”.

6.2 Mission

 “To ensure that Gambling activities in the Northern Cape Province are conducted with integrity and social 
responsibility and to maximize long term economic benefits for the people of the Northern Cape”. 

6.3 Values

 The Northern Cape Gambling Board’s approach to service delivery is premised on the following values:

	 •	 Respect
	 •	 Service	Excellence
	 •	 Integrity
	 •	 Professionalism
	 •	 Teamwork
	 •	 Transparency
	 •	 Loyalty
	 •	 Competence
	 •	 Independence,	Objectivity	and	Impartiality
	 •	 Professional	Secrecy,	and
	 •	 Professional	Development
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7. LEGIsLaTIVE aND oTHEr maNDaTEs:

The Board is a public entity which falls under Schedule 3 C of the PFMA and performs the following functions, as prescribed in the 
Northern Cape Gambling Act, 2008 as amended and the National Gambling Act of 2004:

(a)	 to	oversee	gambling	activities	in	the	Province;

(b)	 to	advise	the	MEC	on	any	matter	referred	to	it	by	the	MEC	relating	to	the	control	of	gambling	in	the	Province;

(c)	 to	exercise	such	powers	and	perform	such	functions	and	duties	as	may	be	assigned	to	the	Board	in	terms	of	this	Act	or	any	other	
law,	and	particular	to	invite	applications	for	licenses	in	terms	of	the	Act;

(i)	 consider	and	dispose	of	applications	for	licenses	in	such	manner	and	at	such	time	and	place	as	it	may	from	time	to	time	
determine;

(ii)	 grant,	renew,	amend,	refuse,	suspend	or	revoke	licenses	under	the	Act;

(iii)	 impose	conditions	in	respect	of	any	licenses	at	any	time;

(iv)	 revoke	licenses	granted	under	the	Act;

(v)	 acquire,	hold,	hire,	let	and	alienate	intellectual,	movable	and	immovable	property;

(vi)	 appoint	staff	and	do	all	things	incidental	thereto;

(vii)	 conclude	and	perform	contracts;

(viii)	 make	regulations	governing	the	licensing,	conduct	and	operation	of	any	gambling	activity	or	business	in	concurrence	with	
the	MEC;

(ix)	 conduct	or	cause	to	be	conducted	hearings,	investigations	and	enquiries	with	regard	to	any	matter	falling	within	the	scope	
of	its	functions;

(x)	 enter	into	agreement	with	or	obtain	the	assistance	of	any	department	or	organ	of	State,	including	the	South	African	Police	
Service,	to	conduct	or	assist	it	in	conducting	its	investigations;

(xi)	 conduct	an	ongoing	study	of,	and	investigation,	into	gambling	throughout	the	Province	and	elsewhere	to	keep	abreast	with	
developments	in	the	industry;		

(xii)	 determine	minimum	internal	control	systems	for	license	holders,	including	accounting	and	reporting	procedures	and	any	
other	procedures	or	systems,	whether	computerized	or	not;

(xiii)	 determine	fees	and	charges	in	respect	of	investigations,	inquiries	and	any	other	function	performed	by	the	Board;

(xiv)	 issue	 summonses	 for	 the	appearance	of	persons	or	 the	production	of	books,	documents	or	 things	 in	 connection	with	
applications,	hearings,	investigations	or	enquiries	under	this	Act,	including	the	rules	or	regulations	made	thereunder;	

(xv)	 compile	 a	 list	 of	 persons	who	 are	 to	be	excluded	or	 rejected	 from	 specified	 licensed	premises	 and	of	 those	who	 are	
prohibited	from	partaking	in	specified	gambling;
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ParT b:

Performance Information



1. aUDITor’s rEPorT: PrEDETErmINED obJECTIVEs
AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable assurance in the 
form of an The audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report 
to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 62 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. sITUaTIoNaL aNaLYsIs
2.1 Service Delivery Environment

The Northern Cape Gambling Board is a juristic person established in terms of section 2 of the Northern Cape Gambling Act, Act 3 
of 2008 and is classified as a schedule 3C Provincial Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance Management Act. The Board draws its 
existence and mandate from the provisions of the Act. 

The gambling industry contributes enormously to the different sectors of the Province. Even though gambling is seen as a leisure 
activity, it does play a positive role in terms of revenue it generates and employment it creates. With more gambling modes to be 
licenced in future, we do hope that it further contributes to the betterment of the province at large, socially and economically so.  

•	 With	regards	to	the	operations	of	the	Board	the	following	were	achieved:
•	 New	board	appointed	effective	1	April	2015.
•	 All	sub-committees	of	the	board	were	established	as	required.
•	 All	quarterly	inspections	at	Licensees	were	done.
•	 Internal	Audit	functions	have	been	implemented.
•	 Inspectorate	Unit	continued	to	embarked	on	illegal	gambling	investigations	and	engaging	South	African	Police	Service	(SAPS)
•	 Commencement	of	the	rolling	out	of	Limited	Pay-out	Machines	(LPM’s)	process,	with	71	sites	approved	by	31	March	2016

2.2. Organisational Environment

The	Board	appointed	the	former	Legal	Manager	as	Chief	Executive	Officer	(CEO)	effective	from	1	January	2016.	A	new	Legal	Manager	
was	also	appointed,	who	commenced	duty	shortly	after	year-end.	One	disciplinary	hearing	was	in	process	at	year-end.

In terms of the workforce, the approved organogram consists of 33 employees with 20 positions filled thus far. The staff complement 
grew from 15 to 20 employees during the financial year. The Board might consider relooking at the current approved organogram 
moving forward. This will be to see if there are positions that can be removed from or added to the current Organogram. Other 
positions could not be filled due to budgetary constraints. The Board will continue to engage the Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism as well as Provincial Treasury to find ways on how we can overcome these challenges.  

3. KEY PoLICY DEVELoPmENTs aND LEGIsLaTIVE 
CHaNGEs

No new policies were approved and/or amendments to legislation were proposed by the board during the financial year, but this will 
be done in the new financial year.
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4. PErFormaNCE INFormaTIoN bY ProGrammE 
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED TARGETS AND ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS:

PROGRAMME 1: INVESTIGATIONS AND LICENSING

Performance indicator Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-
Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

1.1 Implementation of 
procedure manual

Monthly Implementation 
and monitoring of 
procedure manual

Not done Business strategy 
halted and awaiting 
the introduction 
of LPMs and other 
gambling modes.

Business 
strategy will be 
implemented 
when LPMs and 
gambling modes 
are introduced.

1.2 Licensing of LPM 
operators

Monthly Roll-out	of	the	First	
Phase

Conducted 
in loco site 
inspections 

Certified and 
approved forty 
five	(45)	LPM	sites	
for operation.

Approval of 
inspected sites 
and receipt of new 
site applications 
awaits the Board’s 
appointment and 
deliberations.

Roll-out	will	
commence 
following 
the Board’s 
appointment and 
approval of site 
applications

1.3 Effective 
enforcement of 
conditions of licence 
in relation to BEE

Quarterly Conduct	four	(4)	
quarterly compliance 
audits

Twelve	(12)	
compliance audits 
conducted. Four 
(4)	at	Desert	
Palace	four	(4)	at	
Casino, Grand 
Oasis Casino, four 
(4)	at	Flamingo	
Casino.

None N/A

1.4 Registered gambling 
related service 
providers in a 
database	(Third	
party)

Investigate all 
new applications 
for Certificate of 
Suitability

Quarterly 100% registration 
and investigation 
of all applicants of 
certificate of suitability

Conducted 
investigations 
on	three	(3)	
applications 
received from 
Deltronic, 
Masicebise and 
Rocket Trading.

No new 
applications were 
received.

Applications will 
be investigated as 
and when they are 
received.

NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
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Performance indicator Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-
Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

1.5 Investigate and 
register gambling 
and key employees 
in a database 

Quarterly Quarterly submit 
reports to Board for 
consideration and 
approval

Submit quarterly 
submit reports 
to Board for 
consideration 
and approval 
consideration

Register 100% of 
employee applications 
received and 
investigate suitability 
thereof.

Eighty	two	(82)	
temporary 
key employee 
certificates were 
issued to Gold 
Rush, Flamingo 
Casino, Desert 
Palace Casino, 
Leithlo	SPV	
Casino, Scorebet, 
Vukani	Gaming,	
Phumelela 
Gaming and 
Leisure and 
Fidelity Eyethu 
Security.

Two hundred 
and	six	(206)	
temporary 
gambling 
employee 
certificates 
were issued to 
Scorebet, Leithlo 
SPV,	Vukani,	
Grand Oasis 
Casino, Desert 
Palace Casino, 
Gold Rush and 
Flamingo Casino 
Phumelela 
Gaming Leisure 
and Fidelity 
Eyethu Security.

None N/A
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Performance indicator Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-
Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

1.6 Monitoring 
continued suitability 
of holders of 
certificate of 
suitability

Quarterly Conduct	four	(4)	
quarterly compliance 
audits to monitor 
the suitability of all 
licensees

Compliance with 
licence conditions

Compliance with 
related governing 
legislation

Compliance 
with Codes of 
Good Practice for 
Procurement and 
requirements and 
BBBEE Act

Twelve	(12)	
compliance 
inspections 
conducted at 
casinos.	Four	(4)	
at Desert Palace 
Casino,	four	(4)	
Grand Oasis 
Casino,	four	(4)	
Flamingo Casino.

Not done

None

Only compliance 
with legislation was 
inspected during 
quarterly

N/A

Will be done 
during licenses 
annual renewal

1.7 Licence 
Bookmakers in 
Province

Request for Proposals 
for Bookmaker 
licences. 

Not done G-BET	Bookmaker	
shop was certified 
in Kathu.

Evaluated two 
(2)	Bookmaker	
applications and 
submitted a report 
to the Board.

Investigation 
of submitted 
application is still 
continuing

Applications will 
be investigated as 
and when they are 
received.

1.8 Certification of third 
casino operations

Quarterly Certification and 
renewal of the third 
casino 

Not done The third casino 
was certified 
in December 
2014 and it is 
operational. 

Only quarterly 
inspections will be 
conducted at the 
casino.
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PROGRAMME 2: COMPLIANCE

Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

2.1 Introduction 
of regulatory 
manuals for 
the Gambling 
Control 
Division

Quarterly Implementation 
of the Regulatory 
Manual for the 
Gaming Control 
Division

Not done No new Business 
Strategies have 
been developed 
and implemented.

N/A

Introduction 
of regulatory 
framework for 
other modes 
and forms of 
gambling in 
the Province

Monthly Submit inputs 
on rules , 
Regulations, 
NCGB Act and 
other legislative 
pieces and policies

Not done None N/A

2.2a Ensure 
compliance 
with act, rules 
and Regulation 
by all licensees 
in the Province

Quarterly 100% inspection  
of all gambling 
equipment 
in all licensed 
establishments

Conducted during compliance 
inspections conducted at Desert 
Palace Casino, Grand Oasis 
Casino and Flamingo Casino.

Adhoc	and	follow-up	inspections	
conducted at Flamingo and 
Desert Palace Casinos

None N/A

2.2b 100% verification 
of all jackpots 

Done during quarterly 
inspections when verifying levies 

None N/A

2.2c 100% inspection 
and approval 
of all gambling 
machine changes, 
table movements 
and table layout 
changes

Monitored, inspected and 
approved table layout changes at 
Desert Palace Casino.

Monitored, tested and approved 
denomination changes for the 
Grand Oasis Casino.

Monitored and approved  the 
destruction of stationery at the 
Desert Palace Casino 

Monitored, tested and approved 
three	(3)	machine	moves	at	
Desert Palace Casino.

Approved installation of JCM Bill 
Validators	at	Flamingo	Casino.

Approved surveillance system 
upgrade at Desert Palace 
Casino.

Conducted and approved 
machine moves at Klipdiepwater 
and N12 Outspan road.

None N/A

NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT  

2015/2016

����
�

��

��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

��
��

��

�
�

�
�

�������� ������������� �����

������������������������

018



Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

2.2d 100% evaluation 
of all gambling 
equipment 
movement 
requests

Seventy	(70)	requests	to	
transport four thousand six 
hundred	and	ninety	five	(4695)	x	
equipment, spares & software.

IGT

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	PC	Board	Assemblies	
from IGT Africa Warehouse to 
Desert Palace Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	Harnesses	from	IGT	
Africa Warehouse to Flamingo 
Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	Door	Open	Emitters	
from IGT Africa Warehouse to 
Flamingo Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	Door	Open	Receivers	
from IGT Africa Warehouse to 
Flamingo Casino.

One request to transport thirty 
seven	(37)	spares	to	Leitlho	
Casino Kuruman, NC.

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
four	(4)	spares	from	IGT	Africa	
Warehouse to Desert Palace 
Casino.

Four	(4)	requests	to	transport	
five	(5)	spares	from	IGT	Africa	
Warehouse to Flamingo Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	Complete	Dynamic	
Button Display assemblies 
and	three	(3)	Plate	Hinges	
assemblies.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	pc	boards	from	IGT	
Africa to Dessert Palace Casino.

None N/A
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
thirteen	(13)	spares	to	Flamingo	
Casino.

FLAMINGO

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
three	(3)	American	Roulette	
Wheels. 

ARUZE

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	Emax	DPX	80	PCB	
MPU from Aruze Gaming Africa 
(GP)	to	Desert	Palace	Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
six	(6)	(1	Blackjack	Dealer	Angel	
and	5	Stations)	from	Board	Walk	
Casino to Aruze Gaming Africa 
(GP).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	Milenary	20”	Inverter	
PCB from Aruze Gaming Africa 
(GP)	to	Desert	Palace	Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	spares	to	Desert	Palace	
Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	spares	from	Desert	
Palace Casino to Aruze, GP.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
three	(3)	spares	to	Garden	
Route, WC.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	spares	to	Windhoek	
Country Club, Namibia.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	spares	to	Swakopmund,	
Namibia.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	gaming	equipment	
to	Desert	palace	and	two	(2)	
gaming equipment from Desert 
palace to Aruze Gaming Africa. 
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
five	(5)	gaming	equipment	
to Mykonos casino and five 
(5)	gaming	equipment	from	
Mykonos casino to Aruze 
Gaming Africa.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
six	(6)	gaming	equipment	
from Aruze Gaming Africa to 
Swakopmund	hotel	(Namibia).	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	x	gaming	equipment	
from Aruze Gaming Africa to 
Flamingo Casino. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	mpu	board	from	Aruze	
Gaming Africa to Desert Palace 
Casino. 

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
two	(2)	x	gaming	equipment.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	spares	from	Aruze	
Gaming Africa to Mykonos 
Casino. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	spares	from	Aruze	
Gaming Africa to Desert Palace 
Casino. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
eight	(8)	spares	from	Aruze	
Gaming Africa to Swakopmund 
Hotel & Entertainment 
(Namibia).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	game	kits	from	Aruze	
to Swakopmund Hotel and 
Entertainment	(Namibia)

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	Gaming	equipment	from	
Aruze Gaming Africa to Desert 
Palace Casino.

NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT  
2015/2016

����
�

��

��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

��
��

��

�
�

�
�

�������� ������������� �����

������������������������

021



Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

SUN INTERNATIONAL

One request to transport two 
hundred	and	eighty	eight	(288)	
spares to Naledi Sun Casino, FS

TCS JOHN HUXLEY

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	A-Plus	Shufflers	from	
TCS John Huxley to Grand West 
Casino	(WC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	Chipper		from		TCS	John	
Huxley	to	Flamingo	Casino	(NC)

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
sixteen	(16)	Layouts		from		TCS	
John Huxley to Flamingo Casino 
(NC)

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
sixteen	(16)	gambling	equipment	
from TCS John Huxley to 
Garden route. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
fourteen	(14)	gambling	
equipment from TCS John 
Huxley to Grandwest casino. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	gambling	equipment	
from	TCS	John	Huxley	(GP)	to	
Queens	casino	(EC).	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	gambling	equipment	
from	TCS	John	Huxley	(GP)	to	
Plaza	casino	(Namibia).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	x	gambling	equipment	
from	TCS	John	Huxley	(GP)	to	
Flamingo	casino	(NC).	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
three	(3)	gambling	equipment	
from	TCS	John	Huxley	(GP)	to	
Garden	route	casino	(WC).	
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
eight	(8)	gambling	tables	and	
layouts to Mermaids Casino in 
Namibia

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
One	(1)	table	wheel	to	Micanos	
Casino in Namibia

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
six	(6)	poker	layouts	to	Desert	
Jewel in Namibia.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	spare		to	Mykonos	
Casino in Western Cape

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	tables	and	their	layouts		to	
Mykonos Casino

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	American	Roulette	
Wheels.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	five	
(5)	Poker	Layouts.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
three	(3)	spares.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
eleven	(11)	SDL’s	

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
two	(2)	x	American	Roulette	LH	
Layout.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
forty	seven	(47)	tables	with	their	
layout.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	x	gaming	equipment	
(table’s	layouts)	to	Flamingo	
Casino. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
Nine	(9)	gaming	equipment	
(table’s	layouts)	to	Garden	Route	
casino.

NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT  
2015/2016

����
�

��

��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

��
��

��

�
�

�
�

�������� ������������� �����

������������������������

023



Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	Roulette	wheels	from	
Desert Palace Casino to TCS 
John	Huxley	(GP)

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	thousand	(4000)	Punto	
Banco cards from TCS John 
Huxley	(GP)	to	Flamingo	Casino	
(Northern	Cape)	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
thirty	(30)	Tables	and	Layouts	
from	TCS	John	Huxley	(GP)	to	
Grand	West	Casino	(WC)

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	layouts	TCS	John	Huxley	to	
Mykonos	Casino	(WC)	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	wheel	from	TCS	John	
Huxley to Desert Palace Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	wheel	from	Sun	Golden	
Valley	Casino	to	TCS	John	
Huxley	(GP)

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	Punto	Blanco	tables	with	
layouts from TCS John Huxley 
to Grand West Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	Mark	VII	Wheel	to	
Desert Palace.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	supernova	controllers	
from Garden Route to TCS John 
Huxley.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	supernova	controllers	
from TCS John Huxley to 
Garden Route.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

BALLY

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	spares	to	Desert	Palace	
Casino

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	spares	from	Bally	to	
Flamingo Casino

FLAMINGO

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
three	(3)	American	Roulette	
Wheels. 

WMS

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
sixteen	(16)	gambling	equipment	
from	WMS	(GP)	to	Grand	Oasis	
Casino	(NC).

VUKANI 

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
twenty	three	(23)	SDL’s	from	
Vukani	Gauteng	to	Vukani	
Northern Cape.

OMEGA

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	machine	PC	from	
Flamingo Casino to Omega. 

GOLD RUSH

One	(1)	request	to	transport	five	
(5)	LPM	machines	from	site	to	
Goldrush	depot	(NC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	SDL	from	Goldrush	
depot	(GP)	to	Goldrush	depot	
(NC).

Seventy	(70)	requests	were	
approved to transport seven 
hundred	and	seventy	(1025)	
gambling machines.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

UMLINGO

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
five	(5)	machines	from	Grand	
Slots Western Cape to 3 Point 
Gaming	Warehouse	(GP).

GOLD RUSH

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
twenty	(20)	LPM	machines	from	
Gold Rush Depot to Gold Rush 
Sites.

ARUZE

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	to	Garden	
Route, WC.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
two	(2)	machines	from	Aruze	
Gaming Warehouse to Desert 
Palace Casino. 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	Aruze	
Gaming Warehouse to Flamingo 
Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
five	(5)	machines	from	Aruze	
Gaming Warehouse to Board 
Walk	(EC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	five	
(5)	machines.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	machines	with	software	to	
Pride of Africa Hospitality from 
Aruze Gaming Africa.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
nine	(9)	machines	with	software	
from Aruze gaming Africa to 
Mykonos Casino.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

GPI MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
one	(1)	machine	from	Tellumat	
(EC)	to	Sun	International	test	
laboratory	(GP).	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
sixteen	(16)	machines	from	GPI	
(WC)	to	KZN	Slots	(KZN).

VUKANI

Four	(4)	requests	to	transport	
one hundred and twenty three 
(123)	machines	from	Vukani	
Gaming	(GP)	to	Vukani	gaming	
(WC).

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
fifty	four	(54)	machines	from	
Vukani	Gaming	(WC)	to	Vukani	
gaming	(GP).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	fifty	
eight	(58)	machines	from	Vukani	
Gauteng	to	Vukani	Northern	
Cape.

Three	(3)	requests	to	transport	
sixty	seven	(67)	LPM	machines.

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
seventy	one	(71)	machines	from	
Vukani	Gaming	NC	depot	to	
Vukani	Gaming	NC	sites	and	
from	Vukani	Gaming	Western	
Cape	to	Vukani	Gaming	
warehouse Gauteng. 

ARISTOCRAT

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	
Aristrocrat Technologies to 
Flamingo Casino.

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
twenty	(20)	machines.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

SIMPLICIT-E 

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
twenty	(20)	machines	from	
Simplic-E	to	Gold	Club	
Electronic Gaming.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
ten 10 machines to Grand West 
Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
sixteen	(16)	machines	from	
Simplicit-e	Gauteng	to	
Grandslots WC. 

IGT

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	machines	from	IGT	Africa	
Warehouse to Caledon Casino 
(WC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	IGT	
Africa Warehouse Gauteng to 
Mykonos Casino, Western cape

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
fifty	six	(56)	machines	from	
IGT warehouse to Grandwest 
casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	IGT	(GP)	
to	Desert	palace	Casino	(NC).

One	(1)	request	to	collect	
thirty	six	(36)	machines	from	
Grandwest	Casino	(WC)	to	IGT	
(GP).

BALLY

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
five	(5)	machines	and	gaming	
software from Bally Warehouse 
to Grand West Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	with	software	
from Bally to Leitlho casino.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
eight	(8)	machines	to	Garden	
Route	(WC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	machines	to	Mikanos	Casino.	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	Golden	Valley	
Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	machines	to	Caledon	Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
forty	five	(23)	machines.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
forty	three	(43)	machines	from	
Bally Gaming to Galaxy Port 
Elizabeth	Bingo	(EC).	

GRAND GAMING

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
five	(5)	limited	payout	machines	
to Grand Gaming Gauteng 
Warehouse	and	five	(5)	to	
Grand Gaming Hotslots 
Warehouse from Grand Slots 
Warehouse	(WC)

One	(1)	request	to	collect	one	
(1)	LPM	machine	from	Zonke	
(GP)	to	Grand	Gaming	(WC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	ten	
(10)	machines	from	Grand	Slots	
Warehouse	(Western	Cape)	to	
Grand	Hot	Slots	(Gauteng).	

WMS

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	WMS	
Gaming Africa to Mykonos 
Casino, WC

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
Twenty	two	(22)	machines	from	
WMS to Grandwest Casino 
Western Cape.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

Two	(2)	requests	to	transport	
twelve	(12)	machines.

SUN INTERNATIONAL

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
seven	(7)	machines	from	Board	
Walk Casino, Easter Cape to 
Naledi Sun, FS

ATOMIC

Three	(3)	requests	to	transport	
sixty	nine	(69)	machines	to	
Pioneer, EC.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
eight	(8)	machines	from	
Atomic to Desert Jewel Casino 
(Namibia).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	Atomic	
Gaming to Mermaids casino 
(Namibia).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	six	
(6)	machines	from	Atomic	(GP)	
to Bandits Gambling in Namibia.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	Atomic	
(GP)	to	Garden	Route	(WC).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	ten	
(10)	machines	to	Grand	West	
Casino.

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
eight	(8)	machines	from	Atomic	
to	GPI	(WC).

AGI

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
six	(6)	machines	from	AGI	to	
Garden Route casino.

Four	(4)	requests	to	transport	
sixty	two	(62)	machines	from	
AGI	Africa	(GP)	to	Grandslots	
(WC).
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
seven	(7)	machines	from	
AGI	Africa	(GP)	to	Windhoek	
Country	Club	(Namibia).	

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
four	(4)	machines	from	AGI	
Africa	(GP)	to	Mermaids	casino	
(Namibia).

One	(1)	request	to	transport	five	
(5)	machines	from	AGI	to	Royal	
Namib Industries warehouse 
(Namibia).

OMEGA

One	(1)	request	to	transport	
six	(6)	machines	from	Omega	
Gaming to Flamingo casino.

Two	(2)	request	to	transport	
thirty	(30)	machines	from	
Omega	gaming	(GP)	to	
Grandwest	casino	(WC).

ACE

One	(1)	request	to	transport	five	
(5)	machines.

One	hundred	and	one	(101)	
requests to approve two 
hundred	and	nine	teen	(219)	
LOCs were approved.

1609 Group

One	(1)	request	to	approve	one	
(1)	LOC.

Omega

Sixteen	(16)	requests	to	approve	
thirty	one	(31)	LOC’s	

AGI

Three	(3)	requests	to	approve	
eighteen	(18)	LOC’s.

NORTHERN CAPE GAMBLING BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT  
2015/2016

����
�

��

��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�

��
��

��

�
�

�
�

�������� ������������� �����

������������������������

031



Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

Ball

Three	(3)	requests	to	approve	
three	(3)	LOC.

Aruze 

Thirty	one	(31)	request	to	
approve	eighty	(80)	LOC.

Custom Gaming Solutions

Four	(4)	requests	to	approve	five	
(5)	LOC.

IGT

Ten	(10)	request	to	approve	
forty	five	(45)	LOC’s

TCS John Huxley

Seven	(7)	requests	to	approve	
ten	(10)	LOC.

Game Smart

Three	(3)	requests	to	approve	
three	(3)	LOC’s	

Simplicit-E

Thirteen	(13)	requests	to	
approve	thirteen	(13)	LOC.

Vukani

Four	(4)	request	to	approve	four	
(4)	LOC

CDP Gaming

One	(1)	request	to	approve	one	
(1)	LOC

TURFSPORT 

Three	(3)	request	to	approve	
three	(3)	LOC

ARISTOCRAT 

One	(1)	request	to	approve	forty	
five	(25)	LOC’s	

BET TECH 

One	(1)	request	to	approve	one	
(1)	LOC.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

2.2e 100% evaluation 
and approval 
or declination 
of all request of 
licensees

Approved	CCTV	System	
changes for Desert Palace 
Casino.

Approved	one	(1)	request	for	
installation	of	two	(2)	Digideal	
electronic tables for Grand Oasis 
Casino in Kuruman

Approved	one	(1)	request	for	
machine changes for Grand 
Oasis Casino in Kuruman

Approved request to destroy 
numbered stationery at Desert 
Palace Casino.

One	(1)	camera	adjustment	
approved for Desert Palace 
Casino.

One	(1)	CCTV	System	changes	
approved for Flamingo Casino.

Approved request to destroy 
machines at Desert Palace 
Casino.

None N/A

2.2f 100% inspections 
of all approved 
Promotions 
and Advertising 
materials of 
licensees

Approved	seven	(7)	promotions	
for Desert Palace Casino.

None N/A

2.2g 100% inspection 
of surveillance 
narrative, floor 
plan and matrix 
room

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A

2.2h 100% inspection 
of surveillance’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A

2.2i 100% inspections 
of security’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

2.2j 100% inspections 
of slots 
department 
operational, 
administrative, 
technical and 
statistical functions

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A

2.2k 100% inspection 
of casino tables 
department’s 
operational, 
administrative and 
statistical functions 
(casino’s	only)

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A

2.2l 100% inspection 
of cash desk 
department’s 
operational and 
administrative 
functions	(casino’s	
only)

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A

2.2m 100% inspections 
on totes and 
bookmakers 
monitoring 
systems, 
operations and 
administrative 
functions

Done during quarterly 
inspections

None N/A

2.3 Monitor, 
investigate 
and raid illegal 
gambling sites 
in the Province

Quarterly Investigation of 
all identified and 
reported illegal 
gambling activities 
in the Province

Investigation was conducted 
at Tamong tavern for illegal 
gambling 

Illegal gambling investigations 
were conducted at Ritchie, 
Hopetown, Strydenburg, 
Douglas and Prieska

None N/A

2.4 Liaise with 
and bring on 
board SAPS 
Specialised 
Units, SARS, 
NPA, FIC 
and other 
stakeholders

Co-ordinate	and	
arrange to have 
all stakeholders 
involved in raids 
and post raid 
processes

Joint raids were conducted with 
SAPS and Liquor Board during 
operation FIELA in Postmasburg.

2 Chinese Roulette machines 
were confiscated at Tamong 
tavern in Warrenton and a case 
opened with SAPS.

None N/A
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual Performance  
Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

2.5 Interception 
and auditing of 
all	“in	transit”	
gambling 
equipment 
in or passing 
through the 
Province

25% Interception 
and auditing of 
all	“in	transit”	
gambling 
equipment in or 
passing through 
the Province

Not done The interception 
is purported to 
ensure that only 
the number 
of gambling 
equipment or 
machines approved 
to be transported 
is indeed 
transported. 

This verification 
involves an 
inspector stopping 
and searching the 
trucks used to 
transport gambling 
equipment and 
machines to 
ensure conformity 
with the approval 
given.

The spade of 
hijackings make 
it difficult for the 
achievement of 
this as licensees 
indicate that drivers 
are sceptical to 
stop for searches 
as they are not 
sure if its indeed 
the officials of the 
Board stopping 
them.

This will be 
removed from 
future targets

2.6 Conduct 
responsible 
gambling 
programmes

Continuous 
implementation 
of Responsible 
Gambling 
Programmes

Responsible Gambling 
Campaigns conducted at Richie 
and Hopetown.

None N/A

2.7 Ensure punter 
protection

Monthly Ensure fair and 
rational resolution 
of disputes 
between punters 
and licensees

Resolved	two	(2)	complaints	
lodged against Desert Palace 
Casino.

Resolved	two	(2)	complaints	
lodged against Flamingo Casino.

None N/A.
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PROGRAMME 3: GAMBLING AUDIT

Performance 
Indicator

Reporting 
period

Annual targets 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustment

1 Perform 
Gambling 
Revenue 
Audits for 
the licensees: 
Verifications

Perform 
Gambling 
Revenue 
Audits for 
the licensees: 
Verifications

Monthly Conduct  Twelve 
(12)	Revenue	(Levy)	
verifications per casino

Done None N/A

  
Quarterly

Conduct	(8)	Revenue	
(Tax)	Verifications	for	
the Totalisator

Conducted	one	(1) Not done due 
to lack of staff 
members 

Will be done in 
the new financial 
year sine more 
appointments have 
been done. 

Quarterly Conduct	(8)	Revenue	
Tax verifications per 
Bookmaker 

Not done Not done due 
to lack of staff 
members 

Will be done in 
the new financial 
year sine more 
appointments have 
been done. 

Quarterly Conduct	(12)	Revenue	
(Levy)	verifications	per			
Bingo Operation

Not applicable There are no 
Bingo operators in 
the province

N/A

Quarterly Conduct	(8)	
Revenue(Levy)	
verifications per Route 
Operator(LPM)	

Not applicable None N/A

2 Perform 
gambling audit 
reviews for the 
licensees

Quarterly 4 Gambling Levies 
Audit per casino 

4 done at Desert 
palace and at 
Flamingo and Grand 
Oasis 3 each

None N/A

Biannually 2 Gambling Tax Audit 
per bookmaker

Not applicable None N/A

Biannually  2 Gambling Tax Audit 
for Totalisator

Not applicable None N/A

Quarterly 2 Gambling Levies 
Audit per Bingo 
Operation

Not applicable There are no 
Bingo operators in 
the province

N/A

Quarterly 4 Gambling Levies 
Audit Per Route 
Operator(	Limited	
Pay-out	Machine)	

Not applicable None N/A
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Performance 
Indicator

Reporting 
period

Annual targets 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustment

3 Compile 
statistical audit 
reports for 
the licensees: 
Statistical 
Reports

 

Quarterly 4 Quarterly financial 
performance reports 
per Casino

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Quarterly 4 Quarterly financial 
performance reports 
for Totalisator

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Quarterly Quarterly financial 
performance reports 
per Bookmaker

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

         
Quarterly

2 Quarterly financial 
performance reports 
per Bingo operations

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Quarterly 4 Quarterly financial 
performance 
reports per Route 
Operator(LMPs)

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

4 Perform  
Annual 
Audits for the 
Licensees

Annually •	one	(1)	Annual	audit	
per Casino

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Annually •	one	(1)	Annual	audit	
per Bookmakers

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Annually •	1	Annual	audits	for	
Totalisators

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Annually •	1	Annual	audit	per	
Bingo operator

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A

Annually •	1	Annual	audit	for	
LPM’s

Not applicable No enough 
capable staff

N/A
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PROGRAMME 4: LEGAL SERVICES

Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

4.1 Provide reliable 
and reputable 
legal opinions 
to enable the 
Board and 
management to 
make informed 
decisions

As an when 
required

Hundred	(100)	%	
legal advice given to 
the Board.

Hundred	(100)	%	legal	
advice given

None N/A

To ensure 
that licence 
conditions are in 
compliance with 
the legislative 
framework

Annually 
and when 
required

Review Licence 
conditions

Not done Licence conditions 
not done and 
reviewed.

Licence conditions 
to be done and 
imposed in new 
financial year.

Facilitate 
litigation

Quarterly Facilitate litigation 
against the Board.

All litigation against the 
Board facilitated.

None N/A

Review all 
policies, 
contracts 
communiqué 
and 
documentation 
directed to the 
Board

Quarterly 
and as 
and when 
required

All contracts, 
communication 
and documents of 
the Board to be 
reviewed.

Reviewed all 
communication and 
documents against the 
Board

All policies to be 
reviewed in new 
financial year.

All policies to be 
reviewed in new 
financial year

4.2 Co-ordinate	
Board, 
Committee 
Special and 
Board and 
Committee 
meetings

Quarterly 
and as 
and when 
required

Co-ordinate	all	
Board meetings, 
Special Board 
meetings and 
Sub-committee	
meetings

Co-ordinated	the	
following meetings:

Four	(4)	Quarterly	
Board meetings

Six	(6)	Special	Board	
meetings

One	(1)	Audit	
Committee meetings

One	(1)	HR	
Committee meeting

One	(1)	Finance	and	
IT	Sub-Committee	
meeting held.

None N/A
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

Co-ordinate	
enquiries 
and  Hearings 
proceedings 
relating to 
Gambling 
activities in the 
Province

When the  
need arise

Co-ordinate	
enquiries 
and Hearings 
proceedings relating 
to Gambling 
activities in the 
Province.

Enquiries held as and 
when needed.

None N/A

4.3 Draft, review 
and amend 
legislation 
applicable to 
the Board 
and Gambling 
Activities in the 
Province

As and when 
the need 
arises

Legislation to be 
drafted, reviewed 
and amended when 
need arise.

To be drafted, 
reviewed and 
amended as and when 
the need arise

None N/A

To keep the 
Board abreast 
of all legislative 
changes and 
updates

Quarterly Attend all FEF and 
LCF quarterly 
meetings

Quarterly meetings 
to be attended when 
forum Chairpersons 
call same

None N/A

4.4 Implementation 
and monitoring 
of Principles 
of Good 
Corporate 
Governance

Quarterly N/A N/A N/A N/A
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PROGRAMME 5: HUMAN RESOURCES

Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

5.1 Facilitate the 
placement of staff

Annually Recruit 
employees based 
on staff turnover, 
organogram and 
available funding

5 Board Members appointed

1 Audit Committee 
chairperson appointed

9 Positions filled

3 x resignations received

(CEO,	Licensing	Officer	and	
Compliance	Inspector)

None Personnel Budget 
increased to 
appoint/recruit staff 
for the 12 vacant 
and unfunded 
positions in the 
organogram

Facilitate and 
administer annual 
salary reviews 
and employee 
benefits – 
including leave

Annually None Salaries reviewed and 
backdated from  April 2015

Updated benefit records

None None

Provision of 
Labour relations 
support and 
advice

On-going Seven	(7)	days	
turn-around	
time to respond 
to reported  
incidences

One(1)	written	warning	
issued

One	(1)	official	suspended	
in December 2015.  The 
preliminary hearing 
scheduled on the 29 
February 2016 at Horseshoe 
Motel. 

On the 29 February 2016 
a decision was taken that 
the hearing will resume on 
the	22-24	March	to	allow	
exchange of documents 
from both parties.

On the day of the hearing 
scheduled	22-24	March	
2016 the hearing was 
again postponed to the 
14-15	April	2016	due	to	
outstanding documents that 
were not yet provided.  

As and when 
required

None

5.2 Facilitate training 
needs

Annually Implementation 
of Training Plans

3	x	(Inspectors)	attended	
training programme in 
Gaming Inspector Skills 
Development.

4 x Finance Officials 
attended training in 
Accounting Principles course 
and Pastel Payroll HR.

Not all staff 
members 
could attend 
training due 
to budgetary 
constraints

Budget increase to 
enable the NCGB 
to budget one 
(1%)	of	the	overall	
budget received for 
training
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

Manage the 
Performance 
Management 
System

On-going Facilitate the 
evaluation of 
performance and 
compile reports

PMDS Policy is a draft Performance 
evaluation not 
yet done

The Performance 
Management 
Development 
System Policy is still 
a draft which must 
be adopted and 
approved by the 
Board.

Manager and 
Coordinate 
Employee Health 
and Wellness 
Programme

Annually Improve the 
well-being	for	
each individual 
employee in the 
NCGB

The wellness event was 
held on the 27 November 
2015 at the Gambling Board 
Offices. The event was 
sponsored by Old Mutual 
and	Virgin	Active.	

Topics: 

•	Financial	wellness

•	Wellness	and	fitness	(15	
minutes	exercise)

•	Annuity	covers	and	life	
covers presentations

None None

Record 
Management 
of employee 
information

On-going Personnel 
administration 
and Leave 
administration

Record keeping of employee 
information on personal and 
leave files.

Maintain payroll processing 
and preparation of payslips 
as well as generating payroll 
reports.

Electronic third payments 
to SARS, UIF, and Pension 
Fund at Old Mutual 

None None

Review Human 
Resource Policy

Annually Monitoring of 
staff continuous 
compliance with 
the HR policy

Continuous monitoring 
of staff members for 
compliance with the HR 
Policy

None Revision of the 
Policy when 
necessary
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PROGRAMME 6: FINANCE

Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

6.1 Monitoring Of the 
implementation 
of the NCGB 
Business Strategy 
against Budget

Monthly 12 Financial status 
reports

12 Financial reports 
prepared.

None n/a

6.2 Cash Management Monthly Submission of final 
budget for next 
financial period.

Revised 16/17 estimated 
budget submitted on 
25Feb2016 with prioritisation 
/	cost-cutting	letter.	

6.3 Bank 
reconciliations

Monthly Twelve	(12)	Bank	
reconciliations

12 Monthly bank 
reconciliations performed for 
each month.

None n/a

6.4 Collection and 
reconciliation of 
application fees

Monthly Twelve	(12)	Financial	
status reports

Done. Refer 6.1

Reconciliation of probity 
income and expenditure 
complete from Apr2015 – 
March2016

March 2016 n/a

6.5 Collection and 
reconciliation of all 
other fees due to 
the Board

Monthly Twelve	(12)	Financial	
status reports

Done. Refer 6.1

Classification of probity vs 
application/renewal fees 
from	Apr2015-	March2016	
complete

March 2016 n/a
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

6.6 Facilitate the 
internal and 
external audit 
process

Annually and 
quarterly

One annual external 
audit,

Quarterly Internal 
Audit

14/15 external audit report  
issued 31 Jul 2015 – financially 
unqualified opinion with 
findings on compliance.

14/15 external audit report 
included in annual report 
submitted to DEDaT and 
NCPT by 31 Aug 2015

14/15 external audit report 
included in final printed 
annual	report	(30	books)	
submitted to DEDaT, NCPT 
and NCPL by 30 September 
2015.

14/15 Internal audits reports 
completed during Apr2015:
•	Revenue	Q2
•	SCM	Q3
•	14/15	internal	audit	

facilitated, finalised during 
June2015:
•	compliance	Q2,3
•	SCM	Q4
•	Risk	management	Q3
•	Revenue	Q3,	Q4

Internal audit for the full 
15/16 year commenced on 
1Mar2016 and completed 
by 31Mar2016. Discussion 
of reports with internal 
auditor LDSW scheduled for 
5Apr2016, and again for 18 
Apr2016.

Discussion	of	free-of-charge	
provision of internal audit 
services by NC Provincial 
Treasury held by CEO&CFO 
with head of internal audit, 
Johan van Tonder at NCGB 
premises on Wednesday 
30Mar2016.
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

6.7 Annually Audited financial 
statements Audit 
report and Final 
Annual Report

Submitted approved AFS for 
the year ended 31 March 
2015 to AGSA by 29 May 
2015.

None n/a

6.8 Implement 
recommendations 
of Internal Audit

Quarterly One report on 
implementation of 
recommendations

Internal audit for the full 
15/16 year commenced on 
1Mar2016 and completed by 
31Mar2016. 

Discussion of final internal 
audit reports scheduled for 
18Apr2016.

Audit implementation plan 
based on external audit  
report from AGSA has been 
submitted to NC Provincial 
Treasury on 30Sept2015, and 
again	(revised)on	31Jan2016.	

done n/a

6.9 Monitoring of full 
compliance with 
NCGB’s ICP and 
other relevant 
legislation

Quarterly 4 Compliance 
evaluation reports

4 Compliance checklists  
submitted.

Irregular expenditure register 
of payments completed to 
March 2016.

None n/a

6.10 Governance of 
Entity’s Risk

Quarterly 1 Risk Committee 
Meeting

Discussion of composition of 
Audit & risk committees held 
by CEO&CFO with head 
of internal audit, Johan van 
Tonder at NCGB premises 
on Wednesday 30Mar2016, 
and NC Provincial Treasury’s 
possible assistance with Risk 
Committee.

Risk 
committee 
meetings

Will be 
conducted as 
soon as correct 
composition of 
risk committee 
has been 
finalised.

6.11 Facilitate the 
demand and 
acquisition 
of goods and 
services

On-going Procurement of 
goods and services 
identified by 
departments in order 
of priority as and 
when required

Continuous monitoring of 
purchases of goods and 
services as identified by 
various departments.

Continuous procurement 
of goods and services by 
departments in order of 
priority as and when is 
required.

None n/a
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

6.12 Dispose of 
obsolete and 
reduced assets

Annually As and when 
required

Annual target: Replacement 
of laptops done. All laptops 
have been set up by 
DEDaT’s IT, Pastel has been 
transferred onto new laptops, 
online banking has been 
transferred. Asset disposal 
report to be prepared 
after full  FAR verification 
scheduled for 31Mar2016.

Annual target: Order for 
purchase of new furniture 
issued on 31Mar2016. Once 
received, the old furniture 
will be included in the asset 
disposal report for the next 
Finance Committee Meeting

None n/a

6.13 Ensure proper 
asset management

Bi-	annually 1 Full asset 
verification report

1st FAR reconciliation 
to	Vodacom	(instalment	
contracts)	and	Mutual	&	
Federal	(insurance)	plus	
review and amendments 
completed and submitted 
to Enslins consutlants by 
30Apr2015.

2nd FAR full asset verification 
done on 30 June 2015

Full asset verification 
of NCGB assets as at 
31Mar2016 performed on 
Thursday 31Mar2016.

6.14 Annually Review M&F insurance p olicy 
reviewed and updated on:
– 12 May 2015.
– 30 Sept 2015
– Oct2015

Fourth review of insurance 
policy done on 31Mar2016 
together with full asset 
verification.

None n/a
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Performance 
indicator 

Reporting 
period

Annual target 
2015/16

15/16 Actual 
Performance  

Apr2015-Mar2016

Deviations Proposed 
adjustments

6.15 Establish a 
database of 
suppliers and 
service providers

On-going	 Continuous updating 
and review of 
suppliers database

Supplier database updated 
monthly.

National Treasury Central 
Supplier Database training 
attended on 29Mar2016 by 
new procurement officer. 
Registration forms awaited 
from NCPT. NT CSD will be 
implemented with immediate 
effect as soon as NCGB’s 
registration is complete.

None n/a

6.16 Ensure 
maintenance of 
Pastel Accounting 
and Pastel Payroll

On-going Maintenance and 
monitoring

Pastel Accounting done 
monthly – refer 6.1

Pastel payroll run done 
monthly 2days before payday 
(25th).

SARS payment for Mar2016 
withheld for additional claims 
paid after payroll run – will 
be executed by legislated 
deadline of 7Apr2016.

SARS 
Payment

Paid SARS on 
6Apr2016, 
before the 
legislated 
deadline of 
7Apr2016.

6.17 Software licenses Annually Monitoring of 
licenses

Pastel licences renewed 17 
Aug	2015	(quarter	2).

None n/a

5. rEVENUE CoLLECTIoN

Fees collected on behalf of DEDaT for 2015/16 R 1 799 630.04

Levies verified for 2015/16 R 21 100 470.22

5.1 Capital investment 

The following capital investments were made by the NCGB for the financial period under review:

•	 All	the	existing	14	laptops	which	had	reached	the	end	of	their	useful	lives	were	replaced	during	December	2015
•	 An	additional	6	new	laptops	were	purchased	for	newly	funded	posts	during	March	2016.
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ParT C:

Governance



1. INTroDUCTIoN
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to account. In 
addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s  enabling legislation, and the Companies Act, corporate governance with 
regard	to	public	entity’s	is	applied	through	the	precepts	of	the	Public	Finance	Management	Act	(PFMA)	and	run	in	tandem	with	the	
principles contained in the King’s Report on Corporate Governance.

Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate governance.

           

2. PorTFoLIo CommITTEEs (if applicable) 
Not applicable

3. EXECUTIVE aUTHorITY
All reports have been submitted to the Executive Authority as per legislative deadlines.

4. THE aCCoUNTING aUTHorITY (boarD)

Introduction

•	 The	Board	is	the	Accounting	Authority	of	the	Northern	Cape	Gambling	Board;
•	 The	Board	is	responsible	and	accountable	for	the	public	entity’s	performance	and	strategic	direction.	

The role of the Board is as follows:

The Board performs the following functions, as prescribed in the Northern Cape Gambling Act, 2008 as amended and the National 
Gambling Act of 2004:

(a)	 to	oversee	gambling	activities	in	the	Province;

(b)	 to	advise	the	MEC	on	any	matter	referred	to	it	by	the	MEC	relating	to	the	control	of	gambling	in	the	Province;

(c)	 to	exercise	such	powers	and	perform	such	functions	and	duties	as	may	be	assigned	to	the	Board	in	terms	of	this	Act	or	any	other	
law,	and	particular	to	invite	applications	for	licenses	in	terms	of	the	Act;

(i)	 consider	and	dispose	of	applications	for	licenses	in	such	manner	and	at	such	time	and	place	as	it	may	from	time	to	time	
determine;

(ii)	 grant,	renew,	amend,	refuse,	suspend	or	revoke	licenses	under	the	Act;

(iii)	 impose	conditions	in	respect	of	any	licenses	at	any	time;

(iv)	 revoke	licenses	granted	under	the	Act;

(v)	 acquire,	hold,	hire,	let	and	alienate	intellectual,	movable	and	immovable	property;

(vi)	 appoint	staff	and	do	all	things	incidental	thereto;

(vii)	 conclude	and	perform	contracts;

(viii)	 make	regulations	governing	the	licensing,	conduct	and	operation	of	any	gambling	activity	or	business	in	concurrence	with	
the	MEC;
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(ix)	 conduct	or	cause	to	be	conducted	hearings,	investigations	and	enquiries	with	regard	to	any	matter	falling	within	the	scope	
of	its	functions;

(x)	 enter	into	agreement	with	or	obtain	the	assistance	of	any	department	or	organ	of	State,	including	the	South	African	Police	
Service,	to	conduct	or	assist	it	in	conducting	its	investigations;

(xi)	 conduct	an	ongoing	study	of,	and	investigation,	into	gambling	throughout	the	Province	and	elsewhere	to	keep	abreast	with	
developments	in	the	industry;		

(xii)	 determine	minimum	internal	control	systems	for	license	holders,	including	accounting	and	reporting	procedures	and	any	
other	procedures	or	systems,	whether	computerized	or	not;

(xiii)	 determine	fees	and	charges	in	respect	of	investigations,	inquiries	and	any	other	function	performed	by	the	Board;

(xiv)	 issue	summonses	 for	 the	appearance	of	persons	or	 the	production	of	books,	documents	or	 things	 in	connection	with	
applications,	hearings,	investigations	or	enquiries	under	this	Act,	including	the	rules	or	regulations	made	thereunder;	

(xv)	 compile	a	 list	of	persons	who	are	 to	be	excluded	or	 rejected	 from	specified	 licensed	premises	and	of	 those	who	are	
prohibited	from	partaking	in	specified	gambling;

Board Charter

No commentary can be made on the above.

Composition of the Board 

Name Designa-
tion (in 
terms of 
the Pub-
lic Entity 

Board 
structure)

Date ap-
pointed

Date 
re-

signed

Qual-
ifica-
tions

Area of 
Expertise

Board

Director-
ships (List 

the entities)

Other Com-
mittees or 

Task Teams  
(e.g: Audit 
committee 
/ Ministerial 
task team)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

TOALO 
MOKGOABONE

CHAIRPER-
SON

01 APRIL 
2015

N/A LAW LAW UNKNOWN, 
APPOINTED 
BY THE RE-
SPONSIBLE 
MEC

NONE 4 Board 
meetings, 
7 Special 
meetings

BENEDICT 
ANDREWS

DEPUTY 
CHAIRPER-
SON

01 APRIL 
2015

N/A UNKNOWN, 
APPOINTED 
BY THE RE-
SPONSIBLE 
MEC

CHAIRPER-
SON: HC 
COMMITTEE

MEMBER: 
FINANCE & IT 
COMMITTEE

4 Board 
meetings, 
7 Special 
meetings

THABO 
THOBELI

MEMBER 01 APRIL 
2015

N/A BA SOCIAL 
SCIENCE

UNKNOWN, 
APPOINTED 
BY THE RE-
SPONSIBLE 
MEC

MEMBER: 
AUDIT COM-
MITTEE,

MEMBER: 
FINANCE 
COMMITTEE

4 Board 
meetings, 
7 Special 
meetings
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Name Designa-
tion (in 
terms of 
the Pub-
lic Entity 

Board 
structure)

Date ap-
pointed

Date 
re-

signed

Qual-
ifica-
tions

Area of 
Expertise

Board

Director-
ships (List 

the entities)

Other Com-
mittees or 

Task Teams  
(e.g: Audit 
committee 
/ Ministerial 
task team)

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

GRACE LETUKA MEMBER 01 APRIL 
2015

N/A UNKNOWN, 
APPOINT-
ED BY THE 
RESPONBILE 
MEC

CHAIR-
PERSON: 
FINANCE 
COMMITTEE, 
MEMBER: HC 
COMMITTEE

MEMBER: 
FINANCE & IT 
COMMITTEE

4 Board 
meetings, 
7 Special 
meetings

CHRISTIAAN 
HENDRICKS

MEMBER 01 APRIL 
2015

N/A B.TH THEOLO-
GY

UNKNOWN, 
APPOINTED 
BY THE RE-
SPONSIBLE 
MEC

MEMBER: HC 
COMMITTEE,

MEMBER: 
AUDIT COM-
MITTEE,

4 Board 
meetings, 
7 Special 
meetings

Committees 

Committee No. of meetings held No. of members Name of members

AUDIT COMMITTEE 1 4 C	CALITZ,	G	LETUKA,	C	
HENDRICKS, T THOBELI

FINANCE COMMITTEE 1 3 G LETUKA, B ANDREWS, T 
THOBELI

HUMAN CAPITAL 
COMMITTEE

1 3 B ANDREWS, G LETUKA, T 
THOBELI

Remuneration of board members

Board sitting fees are gazetted by the Department of Economic Development and Tourism.

Name Remuneration Company 
contributions

Work done Total

TMOKGOABONE R108 174 R3259 R111 433

B ANDREWS R 59 228 R1457 R 60 685

T THOBELI R 61 560 R1709 R1250 R 64 519

C HENDRICKS R 63 560 R1569 R 750 R 65 879

G LETUKA R 61 560 R1513 R 63 073
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5. rIsK maNaGEmENT
The	board	has	an	approved	risk	management	policy	which	was	reviewed	shortly	after	year-end.

The board conducted a risk assessment during the financial year to determine the effectiveness of its risk management strategy and to 
identify new and emerging risks.

6. INTErNaL CoNTroL UNIT
The NCGB does not have a separate Internal Control Unit due to budgetary constraints and the overall size of the entity. The CEO 
is currently the custodian of internal controls within the entity.

7. INTErNaL aUDIT aND aUDIT CommITTEEs
LDSW has been appointed as the Internal Auditors of the NCGB and are represented by the following Internal Audit Director:

Mr. J Liebenberg Director LDSW

The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:

Name Qualifications Internal or 
external

If internal, 
position in 
the public 
entity

Date 
appointed

Date 
Resigned

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

WMS	CALITZ RGA – SAIGA
CGAP
CFE

EXTERNAL:	
AUDITOR 
(CHAIRPERSON)

N/A 18/12/2015 N/A 1

G LETUKA EXTERNAL:	
BOARDMEMBER

N/A 07/10/2015 N/A 1

T THOBELI BA EXTERNAL:	
BOARDMEMBER

N/A 07/10/2015 N/A 1

C HENDRICKS B.TH EXTERNAL:	
BOARDMEMBER

N/A 07/10/2015 N/A 1

8. ComPLIaNCE WITH LaWs aND rEGULaTIoNs
The NCGB has implemented and complied with all approved policies, procedures, legislation and regulations, except as disclosed in 
the Board’s report.

9. FraUD aND CorrUPTIoN  
The NCGB has a fraud prevention plan which includes mechanisms in place to report fraud and corruption. No case of fraud or 
corruption were reported for the financial period under review.
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10. mINImIsING CoNFLICT oF INTErEsT
A process has been implemented to minimize conflict of interest within the entity. A standardized conflict of interest declaration form 
has been developed and implemented for all employees and Board members to declare any possible conflict of interest.

11. CoDE oF CoNDUCT 
The	Code	of	Ethics	(the	Code)	for	staff	of	the	NCGB	is	intended	to	provide	guidance	to	staff	with	regard	to	the	minimum	standards	of	
conduct expected from them and to support ethical and good business conduct of all employees.

12. HEaLTH saFETY aND ENVIroNmENTaL IssUEs
Policies and Procedures still to be drafted and implemented for the management of Occupational Health and Safety.

13. boarD sECrETarIaT
The Legal Manager was appointed with effect from April 2016 as the Board Secretariat.

14. soCIaL rEsPoNsIbILITY
The Board ensures, as part of license conditions, that licensees contribute to corporate social investment projects. 
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15. aUDIT CommITTEE rEPorT

1. INTRODUCTION

 We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. The Audit Committee was not operational 
throughout the year as the external chairperson was only appointed on 18 December 2015. Notwithstanding the late 
appointment the committee had an engagement in February 2016 with management and internal audit. 

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

	 The	Audit	Committee	reports	that	it	has	not	complied	with	its	responsibilities	arising	from	Section	38	(1)	(a)	(ii)	of	the	Public	
Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that the previously adopted formal 
terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs for the meeting held in February 2016 as well as 
subsequent meetings. 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

	 In	terms	of	PFMA,	section	77(b),	an	audit	committee	must	meet	at	least	twice	a	year.	In	addition,	Treasury	Regulations,	section	
3.1.16,	provides	that	an	audit	committee	must	meet	at	least	annually	with	the	Auditor-General.	The	audit	committee	met	once	
during	the	year	resulting	in	non-compliance	with	the	PFMA.	.The	audit	committee	met	with	the	Auditor-General	subsequent	to	
year-end.	

 The names of the members of the audit committee as well as the number of meetings attended by the members are tabulated 
below

Name of members Qualifications Designation Number of meetings 
attended

1 Mr. WMS Calitz RGA, CGAP, CFE Chairperson 1 out of 1

2 Ms G Letuka Member 1 out of 1

3 Mr. T Thobeli BA Member 1 out of 1

4. Mr C Hendricks B.TH Member 1 out of 1

4. THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

 The audit committee accepted a combined assurance model receiving assurance from management, internal audit and external 
audit. Although minor weaknesses were reported to the audit committee, it appears if the control environment may be stabilising 
to provide assurance in the future. 

5. IN-YEAR MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY/QUARTERLY REPORT

	 The	audit	committee	did	not	exist	for	the	majority	of	the	financial	year	and	cannot	comment	on	the	in-year	management	and	
monthly/quarterly reporting. Assurance obtained through the combined assurance model did not reveal any significant risks that 
require immediate and urgent attention. 
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6. EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.1 The audit committee reviewed the unaudited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 during a meeting held on 
25 May 2016. Some comments were made for consideration by management and internal audit during final reviews. 

6.2	 The	audit	committee	took	note	of	a	year-end	surplus,	as	well	as	funds	to	be	surrendered	to	Treasury.	The	Board	receive	an	
annual government grant for its operational and capital expenses and would therefore be dependent on the continued support 
from the Provincial Government to continue its operations. 

6.3 The audit committee advised on the actions to be implemented on irregular, fruitless and or wasteful expenditure as disclosed 
in the annual financial statements. 

6.4 The audit committee raised their concern on probity fees that have been retained for periods exceeding a financial year, and 
although nothing untoward have been identified in the disclosure of the liability the audit committee urged management to 
expedite the processes of clearing probity related activity. 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT

	 The	audit	committee	took	note	of	a	massive	catch-up	exercise	by	internal	audit	to	execute	its	internal	audit	plan	and	provide	
assurance on governance, risk, performance and internal control. In absence of the board and the audit committee for a big 
portion of the financial year, the internal audit was unable to report functionally and operationally to an oversight body. 

8. AUDITOR-GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA

 The audit committee met with the Auditor General on 22 July 2016 to discuss the draft audit report and management letter. 

____________________________

WMS Calitz
Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date: 31 August 2016
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ParT D:

Human resource 
management



1. INTroDUCTIoN 

Overview of HR matters:

The staff compliment only has a few changes during the financial period under review with the vacancy of the CEO which was filled in 
January	at	the	end	of	the	financial	period.	The	five	Compliance	Inspectors,	one	(1)	Licensing	Officer	and	the	Procurement	Officer	were	
also appointed during the financial period under review.

Set HR priorities for the year under review and the impact of these priorities:

The NCGB has provided staff with the necessary support in terms of all Human Resource issues and Labour Relations queries. The 
HR Unit in addition also provided the Board with any necessary support and advice on all HR and Labour Relations queries.

Workforce planning framework and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce:

The Compliance Manager post, Compliance Levies Inspector post and all positions identified as critical will be advertised and 
appointments will be done in the new financial period as soon as the required approval has been granted by the Office of the Premier, 
in light of the moratorium placed on the filling of all vacant posts.

Employee performance management framework 

The performance of staff was not evaluated and reviewed by Senior Management for this financial period under review. The 
previous Board, before their resignation, was in the process to approve the drafted performance management policy.  All vacant and 
funded positions were evaluated and the process was facilitated by the Office of the Premier. The current Board have received the 
recommendation and will deliberate and conclude on the matter.

Employee wellness programmes 

Programmes were identified by HR, and the wellness event was held on the 27 November 2015 at the Gambling Board Offices. 

The	event	was	sponsored	by	Old	Mutual	and	Virgin	Active.	Topics:	

•	 Financial	wellness
•	 Wellness	and	fitness

Policy development:

The HR Policy was reviewed and amendments proposed in the previous financial period. All draft Policies was submitted for Board’s 
approval, which was in progress at year end.
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Highlight achievements:

For the financial year under review, 8 positions were filled following completion of a successful recruitment process.

Challenges faced by the public entity:

•	 There	are	a	number	of	challenges	faced	by	the	NCGB	in	terms	of	Human	Relations,	Employee	wellness	as	well	as	Continuous	
Professional Development. 

•	 There	are	positions	which	were	identified	as	critical	and	urgently	need	to	be	filled.		
•	 Staff	does	not	receive	any	Medical	Aid	benefit	from	the	employer	but	2.5%	of	their	gross	salary	as	an	allowance	and	to	only	

those members who belong to a medical aid scheme. Further none of the staff members has received any bursaries for Career 
Professional Development since appointment. 

•	 The	scarcity	of	certain	skills	and	the	need	for	HR	to	work	with	individual	programmes	on	plans	to	appoint	these	employees	in	
the workforce where possible, and to develop succession planning techniques for individual work areas.

•	 The	need	to	integrate	HR	Planning	with	other	planning	processes	to	ensure	programme	plans	for	the	right	mix	of	employee	skills	
and	abilities,	and	pro-actively	take	account	for	intended	staff	departures.

•	 The	need	for	development	and	implementation	of	significant	leadership	and	management	training	programmes	for	all	employees	
with supervisory responsibilities in order to prevent valuable employees from leaving the NCGB and ensure compliance with 
legislative and policy requirements.

•	 The	need	to	maintain	sound	labour	relations	within	the	NCGB
•	 The	need	to	promote	and	maintain	the	highest	degree	of	physical,	mental,	social	well-being	in	all	occupations,	preventing	illness	

caused by working conditions, protecting employees in their employment from risks resulting from factors adverse to health and 
maintenance.

•	 The	need	to	accommodate	people	with	disabilities,	which	is	in	line	with	the	EE	Act.
•	 The	requirement	for	more	vigorous	performance	management	process,	including	feedback	to	senior	managers,	requiring	HR	to	

work with divisions in regards to training, support and feedback, particularly with regard to managing poor or under performance.
•	 The	 need	 to	 enhance	 Organisational	 Performance,	 managing	 individual	 performances	 by	 implementing	 the	 Performance	

Management System. 
•	 The	need	to	improve	the	representation	of	women	and	other	equity	target	groups	in	senior	positions	and	key	role	areas	across	

the NCGB through the development of a range of specific recruitment strategies and the provision of targeted support for career 
advancement

•	 The	need	 to	build	 the	capacity	of	 internal	equity	 targeted	groups	 that	will	create	 the	readiness	of	 these	groups	 for	positions	
whereby they will be able to participate in decision making. 

Future HR plans:

Ensure that all employees have a work plan and performance objectives that identify the tasks/activities and expected results for future 
performance. The NCGB needs to provide training, workshops and courses to all of their employees. The NCGB needs to employ 
the necessary staff.

Ability to measure organisational and employee performance and succession plan in line with the PMDS evaluation results.

Facilitate the programmes that will assist employees in dealing with wellness issues.
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2. HUmaN rEsoUrCE oVErsIGHT sTaTIsTICs 
Personnel cost by salary band

Level Personnel 
Expenditure (R’000)

% of personnel exp. 
to total personnel 

cost (R’000)

No. of employees Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000)

Top Management 1’718’129.61 33.1 % 2 859 064.80

Senior Management 682 422.25 13.2 % 1 628 422.25

Professional qualified 1’475’740.11 28.5 % 5 295 148.02

Skilled 864 036.55 16.7 % 8 108 004.56

Unskilled 437 607.77 8.5 %  4 109 401.94

TOTAL 5’177’936.29 100 % 20

Performance Rewards

Programme//activity/objective Performance rewards Personnel 
Expenditure  

(R’000)

% of performance 
rewards  to total 

personnel cost (R’000)

Top Management 0.00 0.00

Senior Management 0.00 0.00

Professional qualified 0.00 0.00

Skilled 0.00 0.00

Semi-skilled 0.00 0.00

Unskilled 0.00 0.00

TOTAL 0.00 0.00

Training Costs 

Programme//activity/objective Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure as a 
% of Personnel 

Cost.

No. of 
employees 

trained

Avg training  
cost per 

employee

Corporate	Governance	Training	(Board	
Members)

365,589.00 13, 333.00 3.6% 5 R2 666.60

Finance 1’067’824.58 25785.00 2.4% 3 R8 595.00

HR 372 962.96 18985.00 5% 1 R18 985.00

Compliance Inspectors 779 794.19 39330.00 5% 3 R13 110

Total 2’586,170.73 97 406.00 16 12 43 356.66

Employment and vacancies

Programme/activity/objective 2014/15  
No. of 

Employees

2015/16 
Approved 

Posts

2015/2016 
No. of 

Employees

2015/2016 
Vacancies

% of 
vacancies

BOARD 0 5 5 0

CEO 1 2 2 0

FINANCE 3 5 2 3

HR 3 6 5 1
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Programme/activity/objective 2014/15  
No. of 

Employees

2015/16 
Approved 

Posts

2015/2016 
No. of 

Employees

2015/2016 
Vacancies

% of 
vacancies

LEGAL 1 2 0 2

GAMBLING AUDIT 0 3 0 3

COMPLIANCE 5 9 8 1

LICENCING&INVESTIGATION 2 6 3 3

TOTAL 15 33 20 13

Programme/activity/objective 2014/2015 
No. of 

Employees

2015/2016 
Approved 

Posts

2015/2016 
No. of 

Employees

2015/2016 
Vacancies

% of 
vacancies

Top Management 1 2 2 0

Senior Management 2 5 1 4

Professional qualified 6 9 5 5

Skilled 2 13 8 4

Unskilled 4 4 4 0

TOTAL 15 33 20 13

Employment changes

Salary Band Employment at 
beginning of period

Appointments Terminations Employment at 
end of the period

Top Management 1 1 0 2

Senior Management 2 0 1 1

Professional qualified 6 1 2 5

Skilled 2 6 0 8

Unskilled 4 0 0 4

Total 15 8 3 20

Reasons for staff leaving 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving

Death 0

Resignation 2 100%

Dismissal 0

Retirement 0

Ill health 0

Expiry of contract 0

Other 0

Total 2 100%
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Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal	Warning 0

Written Warning 1

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal 0

Total 1

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

Levels MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 1

Senior Management 1 1     1 1

Professional qualified 1 1 2 1 1

Skilled 6 6 1 1 1

Unskilled 1 1

TOTAL 9 9 2 5 0 1 0 3

Levels FEMALE

AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 1 1

Senior Management 2

Professional qualified 3 4 2 3 1 1

Skilled 

Unskilled 2 2 1 1

TOTAL 5 8 4 5 0 1 0 1

Levels Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0
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ParT E:

Finance Information



1. rEPorT oF THE EXTErNaL aUDITor  
Report of the auditor-general to the Northern Cape Legislature on the  
Northern Cape Gambling Board

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Northern Cape Gambling Board set out on pages 69 to 103, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, 
statement of financial position and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
South	African	Standards	of	Generally	Recognised	Accounting	Practice	(SA	Standards	of	GRAP)	and	the	requirements	of	the	Public	
Finance Management Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. I conducted my audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Northern Cape Gambling 
Board as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with South African 
Standards	of	Generally	Recognised	Accounting	Practice	(SA	Standards	of	GRAP)	and	the	requirements	of	 the	Public	Finance	
Management Act of South Africa.

Other matter  

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

8. The supplementary information set out on page 104 do not form part of the financial statements and is presented as additional 
information. I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

9.	 In	accordance	with	 the	Public	Audit	Act	of	South	Africa,	2004	(Act	No.	25	of	2004)	and	the	general	notice	 issued	 in	 terms	
thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives of 
selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective 
of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express 
assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.
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Predetermined objectives

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2016:
•	 Objective	1:	Investigations	and	licensing	department	on	pages	15	to	17
•	 Objective	2:	Compliance	on	pages	18	to	35
•	 Objective	3:	Gambling	audit	on	pages	36	to	37
•	 Objective	4:	Legal	services	on	page	38	to	39

11. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned objectives. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 
measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI).

12. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

13. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the following 
programmes:
•	 Programme	1:	Investigations	and	licensing	department	on	pages	15	to	17
•	 Programme	2:	Compliance	on	pages	18	to	35
•	 Programme	3:	Gambling	audit	on	pages	36	to	37
•	 Programme	4:	Legal	services	on	page	38	to	39

Additional matters

14. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

15. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 15 to 46.

Compliance with legislation

16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with legislation regarding financial matters, 
financial	management	and	other	related	matters.	I	did	not	identify	any	instances	of	material	non-compliance	with	specific	matters	
in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control

17. I considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance with 
legislation. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

 

Auditor General 
Kimberley 
29 July 2016
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Legal form of entity Public Entity established in terms of the Northern Cape Gambling Act
No. 3 of 2008. The entity is a non - profit entity and is focused on
service delivery in the Northern Cape Province. The entity is listed in
the PFMA as a Schedule 3C - Public Entity.

Board Members TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson)

EB Andrews (Deputy Chairperson)

G Katz

T Oa Thobeli

C Hendricks

Registered office 31 McDougall Street

Monument Heights

KIMBERLEY

8301

Executive Authority Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism
(MEC: M Jack)

Bankers First National Bank

Chief Executive Officer WA Present (Appointed 01 January 2016)

Chief Financial Officer K Reed

Level of assurance These financial statements have been audited in compliance with the
applicable requirements of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1
of 1999.

Published 31 May 2016

Reporting Framework General Recognised Accounting Practise (GRAP), as issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB)

Relevant Legislation Northern Cape Gambling Act No. 3 of 2008
Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999
Skills Development Levies Act No. 9 of 1999
Employment Equity Act No. 9 of 1999
Unemployment Equity Act No. 30 of 1966
Basic Condition of Employment Act No. 75 of 1997
National Gambling Act No. 7 of 2004
Northern Cape Levies Act No. 4 of 2009

External Auditors Auditor General of South Africa

1

2. aNNUaL FINaNCIaL sTaTEmENTs  
Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Index

The reports and statements set out below comprise the financial statements presented to the Provincial Legislature:

Index Page
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Board's Report 67 - 68

Statement of Financial Position 69

Statement of Financial Performance 70

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 71

Cash Flow Statement 72

Accounting Policies 73 - 88

Notes to the Financial Statements 89 - 103

The following supplementary information does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited:

Annexures 104
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Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Board's Responsibilities and Approval

The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records
and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all
financial records and related data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members to meet these
responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.

The members have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2017 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

Although the board is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the entity's external
auditors.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity's financial statements. The
financial statements have been examined by the entity's external auditors and their report is presented on page 4.

The financial statements set out on pages 67 to 104, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, signed on behalf 
of the board on 31 May 2016:

TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson)

Kimberley

31 May 2016
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Board's Report

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2016.

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations

Net surplus of the entity was R 1,702,600 (2015: deficit R 466,918).

2. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2016, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 855,894 and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 855,894.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

3. Subsequent events

Subsequent to year end, items of property, plant and equipment is in the process of being transferred from the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Toursim to the entity.

The property, plant and equipment in process of being transferred consists of 172 individual items with a total cost price of
R254 373.

4. Accounting policies

The following Standards on Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) have been issued but is not yet effective, the
entity did not early adopt this Standards.

GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor, issued August 2013;
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables, issued September 2013;
IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset; and
GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents.

All the standards as listed above will only be effective for financial years starting on or after 01 April 2016, as announced by the
Minister of Finance.

Standards of GRAP effective from 01 April 2015:
The following GRAP standards became effective during the reporting period, the effectiveness of these standards did not have
any impact on the financial statements of the entity.

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting;
GRAP 105: Transfer of functions between entities under common control;
GRAP 106: Transfer of functions between entities not under common control; and
GRAP 107: Mergers.

5. Board

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Changes
TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson) South African Appointed 01 April 2015
EB Andrews (Deputy Chairperson) South African Appointed 01 April 2015
G Katz South African Appointed 01 April 2015
T Oa Thobeli South African Appointed 01 April 2015
C Hendricks South African Appointed 01 April 2015
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Board's Report

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2016.

1. Review of activities

Main business and operations

Net surplus of the entity was R 1,702,600 (2015: deficit R 466,918).

2. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2016, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 855,894 and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 855,894.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

3. Subsequent events

Subsequent to year end, items of property, plant and equipment is in the process of being transferred from the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Toursim to the entity.

The property, plant and equipment in process of being transferred consists of 172 individual items with a total cost price of
R254 373.

4. Accounting policies

The following Standards on Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) have been issued but is not yet effective, the
entity did not early adopt this Standards.

GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor, issued August 2013;
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables, issued September 2013;
IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset; and
GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents.

All the standards as listed above will only be effective for financial years starting on or after 01 April 2016, as announced by the
Minister of Finance.

Standards of GRAP effective from 01 April 2015:
The following GRAP standards became effective during the reporting period, the effectiveness of these standards did not have
any impact on the financial statements of the entity.

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting;
GRAP 105: Transfer of functions between entities under common control;
GRAP 106: Transfer of functions between entities not under common control; and
GRAP 107: Mergers.

5. Board

The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Changes
TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson) South African Appointed 01 April 2015
EB Andrews (Deputy Chairperson) South African Appointed 01 April 2015
G Katz South African Appointed 01 April 2015
T Oa Thobeli South African Appointed 01 April 2015
C Hendricks South African Appointed 01 April 2015
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6. Auditors

Office of the Auditor General of South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period.

7. Non-compliance with applicable legislation

Certain instances of non-compliance have been identified in terms of the following:

Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999

Section 51 (1)(b)(ii) - Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred;
Section 51 (1)(a)(ii) - The audit committee was not active for the first two quarters of the financial year. 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015

Restated*

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 6 421,834 113,135

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 7 20,761 -

Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,015,978 3,315,361

3,458,573 3,428,496

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 386,694 187,652

Other financial asset 5 96,620 95,298

483,314 282,950

Total Assets 3,941,887 3,711,446

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 10 1,218,987 2,444,730

Finance lease obligation 9 57,291 80,438

Payables from exchange transactions 11 1,476,912 1,292,483

2,753,190 3,817,651

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 28,896 75,799

Operating lease liability 4 303,907 201,758

332,803 277,557

Total Liabilities 3,085,993 4,095,208

Net Assets 855,894 (383,762)

Accumulated surplus 855,894 (383,762)

* See Note 26
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015

Restated*

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 6 421,834 113,135

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 7 20,761 -

Cash and cash equivalents 8 3,015,978 3,315,361

3,458,573 3,428,496

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 386,694 187,652

Other financial asset 5 96,620 95,298

483,314 282,950

Total Assets 3,941,887 3,711,446

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 10 1,218,987 2,444,730

Finance lease obligation 9 57,291 80,438

Payables from exchange transactions 11 1,476,912 1,292,483

2,753,190 3,817,651

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 28,896 75,799

Operating lease liability 4 303,907 201,758

332,803 277,557

Total Liabilities 3,085,993 4,095,208

Net Assets 855,894 (383,762)

Accumulated surplus 855,894 (383,762)

* See Note 26
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Statement of Financial Performance
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015

Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services 14,353 21,069

Probity revenue Annexure

A
678,774 612,064

Interest received 18 107,052 130,096

Total revenue from exchange transactions 800,179 763,229

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 14 9,973,000 8,380,000

Rental allocation - 598,497

Request for application revenue - 20,000

Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief 1,001,503 -

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 10,974,503 8,998,497

Total revenue 13 11,774,682 9,761,726

Expenditure

Employee related costs 16 (5,695,338) (5,387,070)

Remuneration of board members (365,589) (427,134)

Depreciation and amortisation (115,184) (136,971)

Finance costs 19 (14,778) (17,902)

Lease rentals on operating lease (1,335,862) (1,335,862)

Debt Impairment 17 (14,658) -

Repairs and maintenance (1,980) (2,189)

General Expenses 15 (2,538,729) (2,924,576)

Total expenditure (10,082,118) (10,231,704)

Operating surplus (deficit) 1,692,564 (469,978)

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities 10,036 3,060

Surplus (deficit) for the year 1,702,600 (466,918)

* See Note 26
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand
Accumulated

surplus
Total net
assets

Opening balance as previously reported 44,330 44,330
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments 38,826 38,826

Balance at 01 April 2014 as restated* 83,156 83,156
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year restated (466,918) (466,918)

Total changes (466,918) (466,918)

Balance at 01 April 2015 (Restated) (383,762) (383,762)
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 1,702,600 1,702,600
Funds to be surrendered (Note 10) (462,941) (462,941)

Total changes 1,239,656 1,239,656

Balance at 31 March 2016 855,894 855,894

* See Note 26
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Figures in Rand
Accumulated

surplus
Total net
assets

Opening balance as previously reported 44,330 44,330
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments 38,826 38,826

Balance at 01 April 2014 as restated* 83,156 83,156
Changes in net assets
Deficit for the year restated (466,918) (466,918)

Total changes (466,918) (466,918)

Balance at 01 April 2015 (Restated) (383,762) (383,762)
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year 1,702,600 1,702,600
Funds to be surrendered (Note 10) (462,941) (462,941)

Total changes 1,239,656 1,239,656

Balance at 31 March 2016 855,894 855,894

* See Note 26

8 071



Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Cash Flow Statement
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2016 2015

Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Sale of goods and other services 578,960 668,189

Grants and other receipts 9,973,000 8,380,000

Interest income 107,052 130,096

10,659,012 9,178,285

Payments

Employee costs and other remuneration (5,871,438) (6,008,244)

Payments to suppliers (4,009,434) (3,941,201)

Finance costs (14,778) (17,902)

(9,895,650) (9,967,347)

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities 21 763,362 (789,062)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (314,227) (196,033)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 10,036 27,925

Purchase of other financial assets (1,322) (420)

Net cash flows from investing activities (305,513) (168,528)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of other financial liabilities (687,181) 1,188,843

Finance lease payments (70,050) 56,778

Net cash flows (utilised in)/generated from financing activities (757,231) 1,245,621

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (299,383) 288,031

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,315,361 3,027,330

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 3,015,978 3,315,361

* See Note 26
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Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act
(Act 1 of 1999).

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions
were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going
concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to
the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data
indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the entity is
the current bid price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.

Effective interest rate

The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.
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Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance Management Act
(Act 1 of 1999).

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions
were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard
of GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going
concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement
is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to
the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data
indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the entity is
the current bid price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.

Effective interest rate

The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.
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Allowance for doubtful debts

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one
period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Office equipment Straight line 6 - 10 years
IT equipment Straight line 2 - 5 years
Other property, plant and equipment Straight line 3 - 8 years
Leased Assets Straight line 2 - 5 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

 It is settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 cash;
 a residual interest of another entity; or
 a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,

foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

 It is settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
 cash;
 a residual interest of another entity; or
 a contractual right to:

- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
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Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

 equity instruments or similar forms of unutilised capital;
 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as

forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net

assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

 the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
 are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
 derivatives;
 combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at
fair value at initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.
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Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Other Financial Assets Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Finance lease liability Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Other Financial Liabilities Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value.
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Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Other Financial Assets Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

`

Class Category
Finance lease liability Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Other Financial Liabilities Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value.
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Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
 Financial instruments at fair value.
 Financial instruments at amortised cost.
 Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price
and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Reclassification

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
 a combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly or by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service
the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to
be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the
servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation
for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognises the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses
are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expired or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers).
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Derecognition

Financial assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
- derecognise the asset; and
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values
at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised
in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service
the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If the fee to
be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability for the
servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation
for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation of
the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognises the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a retained
servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for
the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any expense
incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses
are offset.

Financial liabilities

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expired or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability
and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and
Transfers).
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Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.6 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the prime interest rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
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1.7 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an
intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment
before the end of the current reporting period.

Value in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.
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1.7 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Identification

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an
intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for impairment
before the end of the current reporting period.

Value in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic
basis over its remaining useful life.
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Reversal of an impairment loss

The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for
a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the
recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted in
future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.8 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund
employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

 the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or

 the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.
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Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
 wages, salaries and social security contributions;
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.  The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.9 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles
the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not
exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus.
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Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
 wages, salaries and social security contributions;
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the

absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and 

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.  The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.9 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to

settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles
the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not
exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus.

20083



Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Accounting Policies

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:

- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 23.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that
an outflow of resources may be probable are:

 financial difficulty of the debtor;
 defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
 breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the

ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
 a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on

the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is
considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is
charged and the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the obligation at the
higher of:

 the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
and

 the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.10 Commitments

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
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Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:

 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and

 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the transaction.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,
and

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.
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Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:

 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and

 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the total estimated costs of the transaction.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,
and

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.
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Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude
or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another
entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity.

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.

Debt forgiveness and assumption of liabilities

The entity recognise revenue in respect of debt forgiveness when the former debt no longer meets the definition of a liability or
satisfies the criteria for recognition as a liability, provided that the debt forgiveness does not satisfy the definition of a
contribution from owners.

Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of debt forgiven.

1.13 Investment income

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.14 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as defined in section 1 of the PFMA, is expenditure which was made in vain and would
have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
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All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.16 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condoned before year
end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial
statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.

1.17 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only
entities within the provincial sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such
functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

1.18 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once
the event occurred.
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All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.16 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condoned before year
end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial
statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.

1.17 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only
entities within the provincial sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such
functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

1.18 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once
the event occurred.
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The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot
be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

 GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

 GRAP 105: Transfer of funding between entities under
common control

01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

 GRAP 106: Transfer of funding between entities not under
common control

01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

 GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2016 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

 GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 01 April 2016 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

 GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables 01 April 2016 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

 IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a
Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset

01 April 2016 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

 GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents 01 April 2017 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

3. Property, plant and equipment

2016 2015

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Office equipment 27,060 (10,576) 16,484 20,319 (6,925) 13,394
IT equipment 725,825 (363,264) 362,561 436,153 (268,348) 167,805
Other property, plant and
equipment

17,246 (9,597) 7,649 13,247 (6,794) 6,453

Total 770,131 (383,437) 386,694 469,719 (282,067) 187,652
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2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

 GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

 GRAP 105: Transfer of funding between entities under
common control

01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

 GRAP 106: Transfer of funding between entities not under
common control

01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

 GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2015 The impact of the standard
is not material.

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2016 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after

Expected impact:

 GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 01 April 2016 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

 GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables 01 April 2016 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

 IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a
Grantor Controls a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset

01 April 2016 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

 GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents 01 April 2017 The impact of the
amendment is not
material.

3. Property, plant and equipment

2016 2015

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation

and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying value

Office equipment 27,060 (10,576) 16,484 20,319 (6,925) 13,394
IT equipment 725,825 (363,264) 362,561 436,153 (268,348) 167,805
Other property, plant and
equipment

17,246 (9,597) 7,649 13,247 (6,794) 6,453

Total 770,131 (383,437) 386,694 469,719 (282,067) 187,652
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Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016

Opening
balance

Additions Depreciation Total

Office equipment 13,394 6,742 (3,652) 16,484
IT equipment 167,805 303,486 (108,730) 362,561
Other property, plant and equipment 6,453 3,999 (2,803) 7,649

187,652 314,227 (115,185) 386,694

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Office equipment 16,296 - - (2,902) 13,394
IT equipment 128,333 196,033 (24,865) (131,696) 167,805
Other property, plant and
equipment

8,661 - - (2,208) 6,453

153,290 196,033 (24,865) (136,806) 187,652

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount)

IT equipment 79,495 145,985

Other information

Repairs and maintenance expenditure on items of property, plant and equipment
Office equipment 1,980 2,189

A register containing the information required by the Public Finance Management Act is available for inspection at the
registered office of the entity.

4. Operating lease liability

Non-current liabilities (303,907) (201,758)
Current liabilities - -

(303,907) (201,758)

The lease agreement was entered into on 15 March 2014 for a priod of 60 months, lease payments are to be made monthly in
advance. Lease payments escalates annualy with 8%.

Future minimum lease payments:

Year 1: R1 327 983  (2014/15: R1 229 614)
Year 2-5: R2 983 181  (2014/15: R4 311 165)

Reconciliation of lease payments made:

2015/16: R1 233 714 (actual lease payments); R102 149 (straight line lease adjustment); R1 335 863 (lease payments
expensed for the year)

2014/15: R1 142 327 (actual lease payments); R193 536 (straight line lease adjustment); R1 335 863 (lease payments
expensed for the year)

2013/14: R47 439 (actual lease payments); R8 222 (straight line lease adjustment); R55 661 (lease payments expensed for the
year)
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5. Other financial asset

The other financial asset comprise of a rental deposit paid for the lease agreement entered into for the premises currently
being occupied by the Northern Cape Gambling Board, R96 620 (2015: R95 298).

The lease agreement commenced on 15 March 2014 and per lease agreement the amount is refundable to the Northern Cape
Gambling Board, after the expiry date of 14 February 2019.

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of the other financial asset approximates it's fair value.

6. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade and other debtors 57,641 17,825
Employee overpayment - 18,384
Payments made in advance 378,851 76,926
Provision for impairment - trade and other debtors (14,658) -

421,834 113,135

Trade receivables

Ageing of Trade and other receivable from exchange transactions
0 - 30 days - current 421,834 98,477
30 - 60 days - 14,658

421,834 113,135

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2016, trade and other receivables of R 14,658 (2015: R -) were impaired and provided for.

The amount of the provision was R 14,658 as of 31 March 2016 (2015: R -).

The ageing of these receivables are as follows:

Over 6 months 14,658 -

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 421,834 113,135

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance - -
Movement for the year 14,658 -

Closing Balance 14,658 -

The creation of provision for impaired on receivables have been included in operating expenses in surplus or deficit.

7. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

South African Revenue Service 20,761 -
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5. Other financial asset

The other financial asset comprise of a rental deposit paid for the lease agreement entered into for the premises currently
being occupied by the Northern Cape Gambling Board, R96 620 (2015: R95 298).

The lease agreement commenced on 15 March 2014 and per lease agreement the amount is refundable to the Northern Cape
Gambling Board, after the expiry date of 14 February 2019.

The management of the entity is of the opinion that the carrying value of the other financial asset approximates it's fair value.

6. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade and other debtors 57,641 17,825
Employee overpayment - 18,384
Payments made in advance 378,851 76,926
Provision for impairment - trade and other debtors (14,658) -

421,834 113,135

Trade receivables

Ageing of Trade and other receivable from exchange transactions
0 - 30 days - current 421,834 98,477
30 - 60 days - 14,658

421,834 113,135

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2016, trade and other receivables of R 14,658 (2015: R -) were impaired and provided for.

The amount of the provision was R 14,658 as of 31 March 2016 (2015: R -).

The ageing of these receivables are as follows:

Over 6 months 14,658 -

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 421,834 113,135

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance - -
Movement for the year 14,658 -

Closing Balance 14,658 -

The creation of provision for impaired on receivables have been included in operating expenses in surplus or deficit.

7. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

South African Revenue Service 20,761 -
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Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Ageing of Trade and other receivable from non exchange transactions
120+ days 20,761 -

The carrying amount of other receivables from non-exchange transactions are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 20,761 -

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 3,015,978 3,315,361

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can
be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default rates:

Credit rating
AAA 3,015,978 3,315,361

9. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due
 - within one year 62,791 91,508
 - in second to fifth year inclusive 32,011 83,769

94,802 175,277
less: future finance charges (8,615) (19,040)

Present value of minimum lease payments 86,187 156,237

Non-current liabilities 28,896 75,799
Current liabilities 57,291 80,438

86,187 156,237

It is entity policy to lease certain equipment under finance leases. 

The average lease term was 2 - 5 years and the interest rate applicable is linked to the prime interest rate.

The entity's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3.

10. Other financial liabilities

At amortised cost
Application and Renewal Fees due to Northern Cape Department of Economic
Development and Tourism

756,046 1,443,227

LPM Earmarked allocation due to the Northern Cape Department of Economic
Development and Tourism

- 1,001,503

Funds to be surrendered - Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and
Tourism

462,941 -

1,218,987 2,444,730
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Total other financial liabilities 1,218,987 2,444,730

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 1,218,987 2,444,730

Reconciliation of LPM earmarked funds

Opening balance 1,001,503 1,600,000
Rental allocation permitted to be offset against LPM earmarked allocation - (598,497)
Less: Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief (1,001,503) -

Closing balance LPM earmarked funds - 1,001,503

Funds to be surrendered

Closing balance cash and cash equivalents 3,015,978 3,315,361
Less: Current liabilities payable (excluding funds to be surrendered) (2,290,245) (3,817,648)
Less: Commitments included in cash budget (110,627) -
Less: Procurement initiated 2015/16 not funded in next budget cycle (152,165) -
Add: Cash deficit not to be refunded - 502,287

Total funds to be surrendered 462,941 -

11. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 341,612 177,001
Employee Benefits: Bonus and leave liability 402,422 212,933
Accrued staff expenditure 19,566 75,072
Probity fees received not utilised 713,305 827,472

1,476,905 1,292,478

Fair value of trade and other payables

Trade payables 1,476,909 1,292,480

The carrying amount of loans to and from shareholders are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 1,476,909 1,292,480

Reconciliation of employee leave and bonus liability - 2016

Opening
Balance

Movement Paid out Total

Bonus 150,741 238,781 (214,390) 175,132
Leave 62,192 176,131 (11,033) 227,290

212,933 414,912 (225,423) 402,422

Reconciliation of employee leave and bonus liability - 2015

Opening
Balance

Movement Paid out Total

Bonus 93,600 465,538 (408,397) 150,741
Leave 164,526 (102,334) - 62,192

258,126 363,204 (408,397) 212,933
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Total other financial liabilities 1,218,987 2,444,730

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 1,218,987 2,444,730

Reconciliation of LPM earmarked funds

Opening balance 1,001,503 1,600,000
Rental allocation permitted to be offset against LPM earmarked allocation - (598,497)
Less: Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief (1,001,503) -

Closing balance LPM earmarked funds - 1,001,503

Funds to be surrendered

Closing balance cash and cash equivalents 3,015,978 3,315,361
Less: Current liabilities payable (excluding funds to be surrendered) (2,290,245) (3,817,648)
Less: Commitments included in cash budget (110,627) -
Less: Procurement initiated 2015/16 not funded in next budget cycle (152,165) -
Add: Cash deficit not to be refunded - 502,287

Total funds to be surrendered 462,941 -

11. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 341,612 177,001
Employee Benefits: Bonus and leave liability 402,422 212,933
Accrued staff expenditure 19,566 75,072
Probity fees received not utilised 713,305 827,472

1,476,905 1,292,478

Fair value of trade and other payables

Trade payables 1,476,909 1,292,480

The carrying amount of loans to and from shareholders are denominated in the following currencies:

Rand 1,476,909 1,292,480

Reconciliation of employee leave and bonus liability - 2016

Opening
Balance

Movement Paid out Total

Bonus 150,741 238,781 (214,390) 175,132
Leave 62,192 176,131 (11,033) 227,290

212,933 414,912 (225,423) 402,422

Reconciliation of employee leave and bonus liability - 2015

Opening
Balance

Movement Paid out Total

Bonus 93,600 465,538 (408,397) 150,741
Leave 164,526 (102,334) - 62,192

258,126 363,204 (408,397) 212,933
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12. Financial instruments disclosure

Categories of financial instruments

2016

Financial assets

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial assets 96,620 96,620
Cash and cash equivalents 3,015,978 3,015,978
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 421,834 421,834
Trade and other receivables from non exchange transactions 20,761 20,761

3,555,193 3,555,193

Financial liabilities

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial liabilities 1,218,987 1,218,987
Finance leases 86,187 86,187
Trade payables from exchange transactions 1,476,909 1,476,909

2,782,083 2,782,083

2015

Financial assets

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial assets 95,298 95,298
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 113,135 113,135
Cash and cash equivalents 3,315,361 3,315,361

3,523,794 3,523,794

Financial liabilities

At amortised
cost

Total

Other financial liabilities 2,444,730 2,444,730
Trade payables from exchange transactions 1,292,480 1,292,480
Finance leases 156,237 156,237

3,893,447 3,893,447

13. Revenue

Rendering of services 14,353 21,069
Probity revenue 678,774 612,064
Interest received 107,052 130,096
Government grants & subsidies 9,973,000 8,380,000
Rental allocation - 598,497
Request for application revenue - 20,000
Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief 1,001,503 -

11,774,682 9,761,726
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The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Rendering of services 14,353 21,069
Probity revenue 678,774 612,064
Interest received 107,052 130,096

800,179 763,229

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 9,973,000 8,380,000
Rental allocation - 598,497
Request for application revenue - 20,000
Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief 1,001,503 -

10,974,503 8,998,497

14. Government grants and subsidies

Government grant: Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 9,973,000 8,380,000

15. General expenses

Advertising 363,470 447,212
Auditors remuneration 629,070 454,347
Bank charges 15,863 2,725
Cleaning 480 160
Computer expenses 43,096 32,754
Consulting and professional fees 143,414 80,093
Consumables 12,085 7,122
Entertainment 29,425 10,932
Insurance 39,059 33,263
Conferences and seminars 4,571 31,487
Printing and stationery 33,681 124,856
Security 2,645 -
Subscriptions and membership fees 9,203 5,494
Telephone and fax 99,703 118,378
Training 122,633 1,026
Travel and subsistence 930,387 1,533,422
Water, Electricity and other services 40,754 33,316
Investigation expenditure 19,190 7,989

2,538,729 2,924,576
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The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Rendering of services 14,353 21,069
Probity revenue 678,774 612,064
Interest received 107,052 130,096

800,179 763,229

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 9,973,000 8,380,000
Rental allocation - 598,497
Request for application revenue - 20,000
Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief 1,001,503 -

10,974,503 8,998,497

14. Government grants and subsidies

Government grant: Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 9,973,000 8,380,000

15. General expenses

Advertising 363,470 447,212
Auditors remuneration 629,070 454,347
Bank charges 15,863 2,725
Cleaning 480 160
Computer expenses 43,096 32,754
Consulting and professional fees 143,414 80,093
Consumables 12,085 7,122
Entertainment 29,425 10,932
Insurance 39,059 33,263
Conferences and seminars 4,571 31,487
Printing and stationery 33,681 124,856
Security 2,645 -
Subscriptions and membership fees 9,203 5,494
Telephone and fax 99,703 118,378
Training 122,633 1,026
Travel and subsistence 930,387 1,533,422
Water, Electricity and other services 40,754 33,316
Investigation expenditure 19,190 7,989

2,538,729 2,924,576
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16. Employee related costs

Basic 3,167,755 2,524,383
Bonus 70,626 237,577
Acting allowances - 74,901
Back - payment 33,154 2,894
Overtime 3,053 -

3,274,588 2,839,755

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer

Annual Remuneration 216,044 661,831
Annual Bonuses - 55,153
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 16,282 32,182

232,326 749,166

The Chief Executive Officer of the entity have been appointed from 01 January 2016.

The former Chief Executive Officer of the entity was appointed from 01 July 2014 until 28 March 2015.

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration 700,778 589,301
Annual Bonuses 41,102 46,757
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 53,719 3,588
Other allowance 359 5,446
Backpayment 15,622 -

811,580 645,092

Remuneration of Legal Manager

Annual Remuneration 414,733 399,209
Annual Bonuses 53,600 8,021
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 33,841 10,396
Acting allowance 142,267 -
Backpayment 14,368 -
Other allowances 19,108 -

677,917 417,626

The Legal Manager of the entity acted as the Chief Executive Officer during the year up to 31 December 2015.

Remuneration of License Manager

Annual Remuneration 575,904 547,145
Annual Bonuses 49,062 60,889
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 44,617 72,452
Backpayment 12,839 3,079
Other allowances 16,505 51,866

698,927 735,431

Total employee cost 5,695,338 5,387,070
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17. Debt impairment

Debt impairment 14,658 -

Provision for impairment recognised on trade and other receivables from exchange transactions.

18. Interest revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 107,052 130,096

19. Finance costs

Finance leases 14,778 17,902

14,778 17,902

Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest rate, on financial instruments not at fair value through surplus or
deficit amounted to R 14,778 (2015: R 17,902).

20. Auditors' remuneration

External audit fees 253,552 308,683
Internal audit fees 375,518 145,664

629,070 454,347

21. Cash generated from (used in) operations

Surplus (deficit) 1,702,600 (466,918)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 115,184 136,971
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities (10,036) (3,060)
Debt impairment 14,658 -
Movement in operating lease liability 102,149 193,536
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions (308,699) (113,135)
Provision for impairment - trade debtors (14,658) -
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (20,761) -
Payables from exchange transactions 184,427 53,890
Other financial liabilities (1,001,502) (590,346)

763,362 (789,062)

22. Commitments

Authorised operational expenditure

Already approved and contracted
 Operational Commitment - Internal Audit Services 85,931 461,449
 Operational Commitment - Outstanding orders 110,627 -

196,558 461,449

Total operational commitments
Already approved and contracted 196,558 461,449

This committed expenditure relates to internal audit services and other operational expenditure that  will be financed through
the annual transfer payment received from the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism.
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17. Debt impairment

Debt impairment 14,658 -

Provision for impairment recognised on trade and other receivables from exchange transactions.

18. Interest revenue

Interest revenue
Bank 107,052 130,096

19. Finance costs

Finance leases 14,778 17,902

14,778 17,902

Total interest expense, calculated using the effective interest rate, on financial instruments not at fair value through surplus or
deficit amounted to R 14,778 (2015: R 17,902).

20. Auditors' remuneration

External audit fees 253,552 308,683
Internal audit fees 375,518 145,664

629,070 454,347

21. Cash generated from (used in) operations

Surplus (deficit) 1,702,600 (466,918)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 115,184 136,971
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities (10,036) (3,060)
Debt impairment 14,658 -
Movement in operating lease liability 102,149 193,536
Changes in working capital:
Receivables from exchange transactions (308,699) (113,135)
Provision for impairment - trade debtors (14,658) -
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (20,761) -
Payables from exchange transactions 184,427 53,890
Other financial liabilities (1,001,502) (590,346)

763,362 (789,062)

22. Commitments

Authorised operational expenditure

Already approved and contracted
 Operational Commitment - Internal Audit Services 85,931 461,449
 Operational Commitment - Outstanding orders 110,627 -

196,558 461,449

Total operational commitments
Already approved and contracted 196,558 461,449

This committed expenditure relates to internal audit services and other operational expenditure that  will be financed through
the annual transfer payment received from the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism.
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23. Contingencies

Z.S Mengo

Z.S Mengo has instituted a claim for damages suffered by himself against the Board. The claim is due to an employment
agreement entered into by himself and the Northern Cape Gambling Board that did not materialise. Should the action be
successful, the cost to the entity is estimated at R2 844 404.

Deeps Betting Ground (Pty)LTD

A review application against a decision taken by the Board, instituted, wherein the Northern Cape Gambling Board is the 1st

respondent.The matter is still pending and upon success of the application, the estimated cost to the entity is R40 000.00.

Daniel Visagie t/a Prieska Entertainment Centre 

The Northern Cape Gambling Board is a respondent in this matter, which is at an appeal stage. It’s a spoliation action against
the Board. Matter is still pending and no costs have been incurred in the past year.

CS Sleytler t/a Kuruman Entertainment Centre

The Northern Cape Gambling Board is a respondent in the matter for a spoliation order. Matter is at an appeal stage and still
pending. No costs incurred in the past year.

Vengies Gaming Northern Cape

A review application against a decision of the Board, instituted against the Northern Cape Gambling Board. Matter is still
pending and office of the Northern Cape State Attorney are assisting in this application.

Deeps Betting Ground (Pty) LTD

An application against the Northern Cape Gambling Board to declare Regulation 7 (c) of the Northern Cape Gambling
Regulations unlawful. The Board is a respondent in the matter and the matter is still pending. Office of the Northern Cape State
Attorney is assisting in this matter.         
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24. Related parties

`

Relationships
Board Members Refer to members' report note
Department with significant control Northern Cape Department of Economic

Development and Tourism (MEC: M Jack)
Members of key management K Reed (Chief Financial Officer)

WA Present (Legal Manager/ Chief Executive Officer)
TJ Goeieman (Licensing Manager)

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (1,218,987) (2,444,730)
C September - 18,384

Related party transactions

Remuneration paid to (received from) related parties
R Stadhouer - 366,119
TJ Goeieman 698,927 735,430
WA Present 910,243 417,624
K Reed 811,580 278,973
C September - 749,166

Travel claims paid to (received from) related parties
WA Present 30,788 1,935
C September - 26,229
TJ Goeieman 40,212 50,089
AV Mjila - 22,120
R April - 12,858
C Ogu - 37,273
I Januarie - 69,527
P Olyn - 49,584
TT Mokgoabane 24,325 -
G Katz 30,110 -
EB Andrews 16,676 -
Other transactions paid to (received from) related parties
K Reed 6,253 -
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 13,333 -

Sitting fees and other work paid to (received from) related parties
AV Mjila - 94,105
R April - 45,536
C Ogu - 71,148
I Januarie - 95,830
P Olyn - 120,515
TT Mokgoabone 111,433 -
G Katz 63,073 -
C Hendricks 65,879 -
EB Andrews 60,685 -
T Oa Thobeli 64,519 -

Grant, application fees and other fees paid to (or received from) related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (Grant Received) (9,973,000) (8,380,000)
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development: Rental Allocation received - (598,497)
Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief (1,001,503) -
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24. Related parties

`

Relationships
Board Members Refer to members' report note
Department with significant control Northern Cape Department of Economic

Development and Tourism (MEC: M Jack)
Members of key management K Reed (Chief Financial Officer)

WA Present (Legal Manager/ Chief Executive Officer)
TJ Goeieman (Licensing Manager)

Related party balances

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (1,218,987) (2,444,730)
C September - 18,384

Related party transactions

Remuneration paid to (received from) related parties
R Stadhouer - 366,119
TJ Goeieman 698,927 735,430
WA Present 910,243 417,624
K Reed 811,580 278,973
C September - 749,166

Travel claims paid to (received from) related parties
WA Present 30,788 1,935
C September - 26,229
TJ Goeieman 40,212 50,089
AV Mjila - 22,120
R April - 12,858
C Ogu - 37,273
I Januarie - 69,527
P Olyn - 49,584
TT Mokgoabane 24,325 -
G Katz 30,110 -
EB Andrews 16,676 -
Other transactions paid to (received from) related parties
K Reed 6,253 -
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism 13,333 -

Sitting fees and other work paid to (received from) related parties
AV Mjila - 94,105
R April - 45,536
C Ogu - 71,148
I Januarie - 95,830
P Olyn - 120,515
TT Mokgoabone 111,433 -
G Katz 63,073 -
C Hendricks 65,879 -
EB Andrews 60,685 -
T Oa Thobeli 64,519 -

Grant, application fees and other fees paid to (or received from) related parties
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism (Grant Received) (9,973,000) (8,380,000)
Northern Cape Department of Economic Development: Rental Allocation received - (598,497)
Provincial Treasury approval of DEDAT creditor relief (1,001,503) -
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The Northern Cape Gambling Board makes use of assets belonging to the Northern Cape Department of Economic
Development and Tourism. 

The assets are utilised by the entity at no charge.

25. Sitting fees and Remuneration paid - Board Members

Board Members

2016

Sitting Fees Work done Other Total
TT Mokgoabone (Chairperson) 108,174 - 3,259 111,433
EB Andrews (Deputy Chairperson) 59,228 - 1,457 60,685
G Katz 61,560 - 1,513 63,073
T Oa Thobeli 61,560 1,250 1,709 64,519
C Hendricks 63,560 750 1,569 65,879

354,082 2,000 9,507 365,589

2015

Sitting Fees Work done Total
AV Mjila (Chairperson) 73,810 20,295 94,105
R April (Deputy Chairperson) 43,000 2,536 45,536
C Ogu 55,848 15,300 71,148
I Januarie 58,100 37,730 95,830
P Olyn 80,325 40,190 120,515

311,083 116,051 427,134

26. Prior period errors

Property, Plant and Equipment specific to assets held under a finance lease have increase due to a finance lease not
previously recognised in terms of GRAP 13, Leases. The error have been retrospectively recorded.

Receivables from exchange transactions specific to a leave provision previoulsy recognised have been adjusted due to
subsequent information indicating that a receivable does not exist. The error have been retrospectively recorded. 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions included in the prior years provision for underpayments to staff, the
underpayments have been investigated and the some provisions reversed, resulting in decrease in trade and other payables
from exchange transactions, employee cost and an increase in the accumulated surplus.

Property, plant and equipment specific to a finance lease assets have decrease, the finance lease asset have been disposed in
the 2013/14 financial year, resulting in adjustments to finance lease assets, liabilities, interest and depreciation as previously
recognised. The error have been retrospectively recorded.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

Statement of financial position
Property, plant and equipment - 74,236
Finance leases liability - (77,986)
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions - 55,634
Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit - (38,826)
Receivables from exchange transactions - 1,792

Statement of Financial Performance
Employee cost - (19,755)
Depreciation - 20,812
Finance cost - 8,363
Other expenditure - (24,270)
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27. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprises rental expenditure paid in advance and rental deposits held. Sales to customers are settled in
cash.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

`

Financial instrument 2016 2015
Receivables from exchange transactions 421,834 113,135
Receivables from non exchange transactions 20,761 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,015,978 3,315,361
Other financial assets 96,620 95,298

Market risk

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk

`

Financial instrument Current
interest rate

Due in less
than a year

Due in one to
two years

Due in two to
three years

Due in three
to four years

Due after five
years

Trade and other receivables -
normal credit terms (Exchange)

%- 421,834 - - - -

Trade and other receivables -
normal credit terms (Non -
Exchange)

%- 20,761 - - - -

Other financial assets %- - - 96,620 - -
Cash in current banking
institutions

%- 3,015,978 - - - -

Trade and other payables -
normal credit terms (Exchange)

%- (1,476,909) - - - -

Finance lease liabilities %9.00 (57,291) (28,896) - - -
Other financial liabilities %- (1,218,987) - - - -
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27. Risk management

Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprises rental expenditure paid in advance and rental deposits held. Sales to customers are settled in
cash.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

`

Financial instrument 2016 2015
Receivables from exchange transactions 421,834 113,135
Receivables from non exchange transactions 20,761 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,015,978 3,315,361
Other financial assets 96,620 95,298

Market risk

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk

`

Financial instrument Current
interest rate

Due in less
than a year

Due in one to
two years

Due in two to
three years

Due in three
to four years

Due after five
years

Trade and other receivables -
normal credit terms (Exchange)

%- 421,834 - - - -

Trade and other receivables -
normal credit terms (Non -
Exchange)

%- 20,761 - - - -

Other financial assets %- - - 96,620 - -
Cash in current banking
institutions

%- 3,015,978 - - - -

Trade and other payables -
normal credit terms (Exchange)

%- (1,476,909) - - - -

Finance lease liabilities %9.00 (57,291) (28,896) - - -
Other financial liabilities %- (1,218,987) - - - -
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28. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2016, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 855,894 and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 855,894.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

29. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent to year end, items of property, plant and equipment have been transferred from the Northern Cape Department of
Economic Development and Tourism to the entity.

The property, plant and equipment in process of being transferred consists of 172 individual items with a total cost price of
R254 373.

30. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 673 87
Expenditure - current year 2,168 586

2,841 673

Interest paid on the late submission of returns and other payments to SARS and Telkom (2015: R586) (2014: R87)

Current year Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incidents:

Interest incurred on payroll submission to Old Mutual 173
Supplier appointed to waive SARS penalties and interest 1,995

2,168

Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure due to an international trip undertaken during 2014/15, amounting to R680 538, is
currrently under investigation.

Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure due to operational activities during 2015/16, amounting to R7 563 is currently under
investigation.
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31. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 2,344,700 1,814,666
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 15,672 530,034

2,360,372 2,344,700

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
Final payment on contractual agreement entered
into by the previous board without following
supply chain management procedures.

15,672

Investigation in progress
       

Adjustment in prior year irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure - previously disclosed 406,426
Adjustment in 2014/15 irregular expenditure 123,608
Irregular expenditure 2014/15 after adjustment 530,034

It was discovered that a calculation error have been made in the irregular expenditure schedule of the prior year, resulting in
an increase in the 2014/15 irregular expenditure.

The irregular expenditure is due to supply chain management procedures not followed in the procurement of travel related
expenditure.

32. Services in - kind

Assitance was provided during the 2015/16 year, by two officials from provincial government in an internal disciplinary hearing.

The service was provided free of charge and is not deemed to be significant to the strategic objectives and operations of the
Northern Cape Gambling Board. 
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28. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2016, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 855,894 and that the entity's total
assets exceed its liabilities by R 855,894.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Northern Cape Department of Economic Development and Tourism for continued funding
of operations. The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern and that the Northern Cape
Department of Economic Development and Tourism has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the
scale of the entity.

29. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent to year end, items of property, plant and equipment have been transferred from the Northern Cape Department of
Economic Development and Tourism to the entity.

The property, plant and equipment in process of being transferred consists of 172 individual items with a total cost price of
R254 373.

30. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 673 87
Expenditure - current year 2,168 586

2,841 673

Interest paid on the late submission of returns and other payments to SARS and Telkom (2015: R586) (2014: R87)

Current year Fruitless and wasteful expenditure incidents:

Interest incurred on payroll submission to Old Mutual 173
Supplier appointed to waive SARS penalties and interest 1,995

2,168

Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure due to an international trip undertaken during 2014/15, amounting to R680 538, is
currrently under investigation.

Possible fruitless and wasteful expenditure due to operational activities during 2015/16, amounting to R7 563 is currently under
investigation.

39

102



Northern Cape Gambling Board
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
Figures in Rand

31. Irregular expenditure

Opening balance 2,344,700 1,814,666
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 15,672 530,034

2,360,372 2,344,700

Details of irregular expenditure – current year
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
Final payment on contractual agreement entered
into by the previous board without following
supply chain management procedures.

15,672

Investigation in progress
       

Adjustment in prior year irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure - previously disclosed 406,426
Adjustment in 2014/15 irregular expenditure 123,608
Irregular expenditure 2014/15 after adjustment 530,034

It was discovered that a calculation error have been made in the irregular expenditure schedule of the prior year, resulting in
an increase in the 2014/15 irregular expenditure.

The irregular expenditure is due to supply chain management procedures not followed in the procurement of travel related
expenditure.

32. Services in - kind

Assitance was provided during the 2015/16 year, by two officials from provincial government in an internal disciplinary hearing.

The service was provided free of charge and is not deemed to be significant to the strategic objectives and operations of the
Northern Cape Gambling Board. 
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Annexure A Probity Revenue Reconciliation

Probity Expenditure 2016 2015
Advertising 212,364 377,215
Computer expenditure 200 -
Employee related cost 400 -
Investigations 37,547 -
Printing & Stationery 430 -
Remuneration of board members 59,433 30,370
Telephone and fax 200 -
Travel and accomodation (Local) 368,200 204,479
Total Probity expenditure 678,774 612,064

Transferred to exchange revenue (678,774) (612,064)

* See Note 26
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The supplementary information presented does not form part of the financial statements and is unaudited
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